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When Benjamin Franklin ran for his kite instead ofp‘\ .y .
shelter on a stormy day some 250 years ago, he joine o O
a distinguished group of pioneers with the foresight, ‘"""

courage and intelligence to envision the true power of

electricity. Today, Commonweaith Energy Corporation

operates in the same dynamic tradition, helping mold

and shape the future of the electric industry.

We ave a leader in electric market veform and customer
choice, and are dedicated to creating, developing and
capitalizing on emevging energy opportunities.

And while the winds of change may prove challenging
at times, we’re steadfast in our commitment to unlock
new maykets and bring a pioneering spirit to every
customer offering we provide.

In fact, we’ve well underway.




P 7o file Commonwealth Energy Corporation, a power marketer Financial Highlights 02
licensed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, is an energy-
services company that markets retail electricity in deregulated markets.

Major market areas are Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; Detroit, Michigan; Our Shareholders 04
and California. Commonwealth Energy Corporation is also licensed as
an energy retailer in other states currently undergoing deregulation. Business Review 06

Founded in 1997, the Company provides retail electricity and energy-
reléted products anfl services und.er th.e brand name “electricAmerica. Corporate Outlook 14
With headquarters in Tustin, California, and more than 170 employees
nationwide, Commonwealth Energy now serves a total of 118,000

commercial and residential electricity customers. Financial Report 16

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data 2001 2002 2003
Working capital $ 50,184 $ 58,841 $ 58,41
Total assets $ 107,016 $ 101,229 $ 125,870
Sharehclders’ equity $ 86,037 $ 87,952 $ 93,017
Consolidated Statements of Income Data 2001 2002 2003
Net revenue $ 183,264 $ 117,768 $ 165,526 ‘
Net income $ 60529 $ 5,166 $ 5422
Earnings per common share — diluted § wn $ 016 $ 018 :

(in thousands, except per-share amounts)
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

Fiscal 2003 proved to be an exceptionally solid year for Commonwealth Energy Corporation. I'm pleased to
report that net revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2003 — our second as a publicly reporting company -
was $165.5 million, a 41 percent gain over 2002’ level. Net income increased five percent to $5.4 million,
or $0.18 per diluted share, up from the previous year. We achieved these gains despite significantly decreasing

margins and political pressures in California, and startup expenses in Michigan, a new market.

Progress and Growth
At the end of fiscal 2003, we served the

largest number of electric-choice customers

A Message t o

ShharehQH

in each of the three geographic markets in

il

which we operate. This market-share success

|
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has been achieved in large part due to the
efforts of our sales force, the expertise of our
power resources group, and the unmatched
support of our managed back-office services
group. Most competitive retailers in our
industry only sell to large commercial and
industrial customers because they are not
equipped to manage the many data processes

associated with enrollment, energy forecastng,

metering, billing, settlement and other back-

office tasks for a wide variety of customers at multiple rates. The flexibility and capabilides of our
TRIUMPHT™ back-office software give our retail electric service business a significant competitive advantage
as we continue to target the lucrative small- to medium-sized commercial business segment.

We also achieved a dramatic increase in retail electricity sales, largely attributable to our success in
Philadelphia Electric Company’s (PECO’) Market Share Threshold assignment. Through a bid process, we
were awarded the lion’s share of 64,000 PECO small commercial customers and were able to quickly assimilate
more than 40,000 new businesses into our internal systems as electricAmerica™ customers. We continue to sign
up business customers to maintain our dominant market-share posidons in California; Philadelphia, Pennsylvania;
and Detroit, Michigan. We also will continue to evaluate new market entry opportunities and intend to enter new
territories this fiscal year.

In California we have remained profitable amid the continued turbulence of the state’s energy market
and our efforts to reduce our dependence on revenue in California are proving quite successful. Geographic
diversification has slightly lessened the Company’ reliance on California electricity sales from 67 percent of revenue
in fiscal 2002 to 56 percent for fiscal 2003. With the loss of the green power credits and the possibility that regulators
may impose additional exit-related fees on direct-access customers that will further reduce our revenue and margins

in California, our geographic and product diversification efforts need to continue to help offset such measures.




Oppeortunity and Initiatives

Commonwealth is firmly committed to a business diversification strategy designed to maximize shareholder
value and mitigate the inherent commodity market risks associated with retailing electricity. This approach
includes not only retail electricity sales expansion into new markets, but also implementing new business
initiatives, including the management of community aggregation programs for city and county entities.
Another diversification initiative aims to satisfy many businesses’ newly intensified commitment to energy
reduction and efficiency. Our investment in Summit Energy Ventures positions us to provide energy-efficiency

products and services to our retail electricity customers as well as consumers and businesses nationwide.

2004 Qutlook

‘Our Board of Directors has approved a plan to initiate a reorganization of Commonwealth Energy and seek
the listing of the shares of common stock of the new holding company on the American Stock Exchange
(AMEX). Becoming a publicly traded corporation will enable us to provide greater liquidity to current
investors, better attract large institutional investments, and be more visible to Wall Street analysts.

This decision will support Commonwealth Energy’s strategy to boost shareholder value by deploying
capital efficiently and pursuing diversified long-term growth. To that end, we will continue to compete
aggressively in retail electricity sales in current and new markets, consider viable mergers or acquisitions, and
diversify into related businesses.

History suggests that deregulation evolves erratically - and that increased competidon benefits
customers in the long run. We remain confident that as its advantages become more evident, the deregulated
electricity market will be exceptionally viable.

Commonwealth Energy is at a unique point in its evoluton. With the enthusiasm of the young
company we are, we have demonstrated success in our primary electricity retail market and we plan to diversify
into promising energy-related businesses. The Company also has emerged from difficult years under previous
management with remarkable spirit and. potential.

I would like to thank each and every one of our hardworking and talented employees, patient
shareholders and progressive customers. We owe our success-to-date directly to you, and I look forward to

sharing the well-lit road ahead.

Sincerely,

Ian B. Carter
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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T bhe Rbomboid Boux Stabilizing our Base
Even Benjamin Franklin -

B us ﬁ nNess R ev I] e w brilliant and visionary though

he was — might be astonished

No

by the electricity industry’s 250-year evolution. His enlightening experiment was one of many to eventually
culminate in today’s intricate grid system, with power generated, transmitted and delivered by utilities and other
regulated distributors; and in deregulated states, procured by companies like ours and sold to end-use customers.
Retail Electricity

Commonwealth Energy supplies power, under the name electricAmerica, to residential and commercial
customers in deregulated markets. We seek to offer targeted customers, particularly small- to medium-sized
businesses, meaningful savings over rates charged by incumbent local Utility Distribution Companies
(UDCs) and competitive retailers. _

In essence, we acquire wholesale electric supply at competitive rates, group customers to optimize
consumption and profitability, and deliver electricity via UDCs. In most cases, UDCs also measure usage
and assist us with bill preparation, mailing and fee collection.

Most sales involve providing “system power” — electricity derived, like that of major utilities, from
multiple generation sources. Our supply and delivery costs vary according to weather, regional generation
capacity, transmission, distribution and other diverse influences. Electricity cant be effectively stored,
making proficient capacity management vital to profitability.

Commonwealth Energy gains its edge in two principal ways: by targeting profitable customers through
detailed data analysis and by deploying technology extensively. Our advanced analytical tools and techniques
enable us to match supply and usage demands with considerable accuracy, and help us to identify and negotiate
the most advantageous long-term power agreements with suppliers. The Company buys a small percentage of
its capacity on the generally higher-priced “spot” market to satisfy immediate customer needs.

Among our 2003 Activities Nationwide

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. electricAmerica was awarded and retained nearly two-thirds of
64,000 small-business customers divested under a regulatory settlement by PECO Energy. We capitalized
on that opportunity via competitive bidding, exceptional customer service and rapid customer assimilation.

Detroit, Michigan. Radio advertising and aggressive sales, among other efforts, quickly enabled
electricAmerica to become the market leader among electric-choice customers, including many in our small-
to medium-size commercial and industrial target segment.

California. By fiscal year-end, Energy Service Providers (ESPs) still were not allowed to acquire
new customers who were not being served by a direct-access provider in late September, 2001. We

accordingly focused on stemming attrition and gaining new customers in our Eastern markets.
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with careful detail and seamless composition

orviginating from any direction.




The Nova Extreme Diversifying our Business
Diversification is central to

B e y on d [E u eC .ft r ﬁ C ﬁ .t y Commonwealth Energy’s near-

and long-term strategies. By

No.

reducing our dependence on retail electricity sales in deregulating markets, we potentially can leverage software
development expenses, stabilize our revenue stream and speed expansion into new services and geographic
markets in and outside the United States. Commonwealth Energy accordingly is committed to developing solid
businesses in related, but unregulated or less-regulated, industry sectors. These efforts include:

Energy efficiency

A 2001 Presidential Directive requested that federal agencies reduce energy consumption 35 percent by 2010,
and in 2003, the massive failure of a Northeastern power grid sharply focused attention on energy use. High
energy prices likewise are prompting users to continually re-examine electricity costs. We believe public- and
private-sector pressures will continue to boost energy-efficiency demand.

Energy management

The Company plans to offer a program created to help customers reduce energy bills while keeping our supply
costs down. Under the program, we encourage customers to reduce their energy consumption during high-
cost, peak-usage periods. We then resell “saved” electricity in the higher-priced spot market, generating
revenue that we share with participating customers. Customers gain an ongoing incentive to dampen electricity
use during peak hours and we’re able to reduce costly spot-market purchases. Commonwealth Energy intends
to expand these energy-curtailment programs as markets make them available.

Load aggregation

Another diversification opportunity involves “load aggregation,” or the ability of counties, municipalides and
other entities to combine energy customers into a portfolio that can be served by companies like ours.
In California, local governments now can establish aggregation programs to serve residential, cornmercial,
industrial and municipal customers. We intend to bundle the services we perform for electricAmerica — including
energy procurement, energy management, customer service and back-office functions - for marketing to
aggregation entities. We also intend to continue bidding on existing aggregated customer portfolios from
utilides and to purchase or assume customers from compettors that are quitting or downsizing their businesses.
Managed back-office services

We continue to utilize our proprietary software and services to manage our electricity customers. In-house
development of these assets and resources has enabled us to better manage our customer data and avoid paying
for outside provider services. As the energy industry evolves, we anticipate growing demand for such services from

generators, community aggregators and other entties interested in providing cost-effective energy services to

their customer bases. We're also expanding our software to handle services for natural gas customers.
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"To most people, a utility sparks

P ro fe SS ﬂ OCna ﬂ Tal ﬂ en '[t' images of electrical power

plants, wires and other decidedly

” o

non-human assets. Likewise, designations like “ratepayers,” “account service,” and other impersonal terms
seem to be the preferred nomenclature of utility operations. Commonwealth does not operate like a utility;
we bring an enterprising, relationship-oriented approach to our business. We do not need to own power
generation, transmission or distribution facilities to provide a stable electricity supply and reliable financial
performance. We offer customers savings on the energy portion of their electric service bill and an expert,
personal level of customer service.

The opposite page depicts some of Commonwealth Energy’s most prized assets: our employees.
Their collective market knowledge, professionalism, integrity and enthusiasm fuel our drive to build
a unique company under challenging business circumstances, in a sometimes unpredictable industry,
and to execute our strategy with confidence and clarity. Ours is a complex, geographically diverse business.
Among our essential roles are:

Power resources

The nerve center of Commonwealth’s retail energy business, our power-resources group, consists of data- and
risk-management experts who continually update information sources, apply sophisticated analytical tools and
make crucial purchase and sale decisions — all amid constantly shifting market and weather conditions. These
individuals’ judgment and experience unquestionably adds to our competitive edge.

Commercial and industrial sales

Selling a fluid commodity like electricity, particularly against entrenched competitors who represent a secure,
albeit more costly option, is hardly easy. Through astute sales and marketing programs and sheer determination,
these individuals — along with our skilled Contact Center customer service representatives — have enabled
electricAmerica to secure and maintain its leading market positions.

Other areas

Few industries are more demanding or more quickly evolving than deregulating electricity markets. Financial
services similarly demand intensive monitoring, requiring our regulatory affairs staff to deftly navigate complex,
shifting laws and rules and stressing the importance of flexibility and talent in every corporate role.

All Commonwealth employees are united in the common goal of continuing to forge a viable,
profitable company. With experience, dedication and ingenuity, our professionals provide the inspiration
behind every product and service we provide. It’s this unique blend of talent and experience that distances
us from our competitors and enables our drive toward immediate success and long-term diversification

and growth.
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Multidimensional design whevein each element

to achieve better pevformance and responsiveness than is possible alone.




The Micron Five-Stack Leveraging our Assets
Commonwealth Energy’s pros-

GWOWth P@t@ﬂtﬂ@lﬂ pects hinge not only on our

employees, but on our ability

No.

to extend our growth in retail electricity sales to new geographic markets, products and business lines. We
currently are leveraging our software assets and expertise to better manage our electric service customers,
provide back-office services outsourcing to third-party energy providers and retailers, and bundle
electricAmerica-type services for other aggregate-purchasing entities.

Our entry into the Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, market is a prime example of such capabilities.
Using advanced analytical tools and capabilities, Commonwealth Energy’s power resources group uncovered
hidden value in PECO’ small commercial customer segment and allowed us to submit a competitive bid.
Our ability to accurately value those customers’ usage and profit potential enabled us to win the significant base
we were awarded.

In the process, we also proved that our proprietary back-office processing and servicing technologies are
precise, efficient and scalable. Within 10 days of receiving more than 40,000 PECO customers, Commonwealth
Energy successfully integrated massive associated data — using our TRIUMPH and TACT™ software applicatons
— into our host systems. This is a timetable that many of our competitors would consider virtually impossible.

The value of our back-office processing and servicing expertise also became apparent as we entered the
Detroit, Michigan, market one year ago. Our ability to identify and track detailed customer-related data, and
modify our software and systems to properly communicate with the local utility helped us to quickly gain
significant market share in the small- to medium-sized business segment.

We will continue refining our analytical tools to hone power forecasting, reduce subjectivity in
decision-making, and deliver reliable service at highly competitive prices — while generating appropriate profit
levels. We intend to apply the same creativity and discipline to product and service extensions across other
aspects of our business. Our ability to proficiently manage data is critical to our success and we believe will
become more important as we grow.

We hold a majority interest in Summit Energy Ventures, LLC, a fund which makes investments in
emerging businesses focused on energy-efficiency opportunities. Its investments, to date, include companies
developing energy- and facility-management software and hardware systems; energy-efficient compressors for
commercial heating, air conditioning and other applications; and solid-state electronic components that reduce
energy consumption by various types of motors. We intend to leverage our Summit investments into preferred
marketing rights for those products with promising markets. We also anticipate being “on both sides of the
customer’s meter” — meaning we will continue to provide customers with competitively priced electricity, and

intend to sell devices and services to conserve our customers’ use of energy.
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The Dragon Realizing our Vision

No.

We believe Commonwealth

C or p Ora 't e O U 'ﬁj H OO0 [k Energy’s future is extremely

bright. Our primary business,

providing retail electricity, is expanding rapidly in electricAmerica’s Michigan and Pennsylvania markets. We
intend to continue enlarging our footprint in those states, as well as to carefully monitor other deregulating
states for market entry opportunities.

What’s more, we firmly believe that retail electricity sales will be an outstanding market for savvy,
well-positioned firms, and that direct access is likely to be reinstated in some form in California — possibly in
the next few years. As we are one of the few remaining ESPs serving customers in California, we expect to
benefit proportionately when the opportunity arises.

But how quickly deregulation will proceed, either in California or other states, is impossible for even
the most knowledgeable market-watchers to predict. Given that each state’s schedule and rules for energy
competition differ, the pace and outcome of efforts in one state may vary dramatically from those of another.
The process clearly involves legislative decision-making, regulatory interpretation and industry pressures well
beyond our control.

As described earlier, we have initiated a reorganization of Commonwealth Energy into a Delaware
holding company structure and a listing of the common stock of the new holding company on the American
Stock Exchange in order to provide liquidity to our patient shareholders. In addition, we believe our growth
will progress more quickly through appropriate mergers and acquisitions, which we shall pursue as we
aggressively strive to increase shareholder value.

We therefore intend to continue positioning Commonwealth Energy as much more than “another
electricity retailer.” Energy efficiency, load aggregation, energy management and managed back-office services
offer considerable potential, as may other technology-based products and services still in developmental stages.
We intend to continue pursuing these opportunities and exploring new options, with the flexibility, speed and
market insight that have enabled Commonwealth Energy to become the highly competitive entity we are.
Locking Ahead
A quick snapshot of today’s Commonwealth Energy reveals a company with a solid foundation, ambitious goals
and impressive momentum. We believe the careful planning and hard work we put forth every day is paying off
with lucrative opportunities upon which we are well positioned to capitalize.

In an industry as turbulent as ours, it’s critical to operate with speed, flexibility, confidence and
foresight. Commonwealth has the professionals, experience and work ethic to quickly distinguish energy

opportunities and make intelligent business decisions that we hope benefit customers and shareholders for

years to come.
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Commonwealth Energy Corporation has taken great strides in the past year.
Moving forward, we will continue to forge our own destiny
with the inspirvation of industry pioneers and the convictions of

our commitment, creativity and courage.

>

Market for Commonwealth Energy's Common Equity and
Related Stockholder Matters.

Market Information
There is currently no established public trading market for any class of our
equity securities.

Holders
As of October 15, 2003, there were 2,927 holders of record of our common
stock and 59 holders of record of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

Dividend Policy

Our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock provides for cumulative
dividends that accrue at a rate of 10% per annum. During fiscal 2002 and
fiscal 2003, we have declared and paid cash dividends of $30,195 and
$92,100, respectively, on our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As of
July 31, 2003, accrued cumulative unpaid dividends on our Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock were $90,548. All accrued dividends on the
Series A Preferred must be paid before any dividends are declared or paid
on shares of common stock.

In addition, there is a dispute with respect to 352,000 shares of preferred
stock that are not currently reflected as outstanding on our shareholder list.
The validity of these disputed shares of preferred stock is the subject of
pending litigation. See Item 3. Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual
Report on Form 10-K. If these disputed shares of preferred stock are
determined to be valid, a portion of such shares would accrue interest at a
rate of 12% per annum, while the remainder would accrue interest at a rate
of 14% per annum. At July 31, 2003, the amount of such accrued unpaid
dividends on these shares would have been $42,240. All accrued dividends
on these disputed shares of preferred stock would be required to be paid
before any dividends are declared or paid on shares of common stock.
‘We have not declared or paid a cash dividend on our common stock, and
we do not anticipate paying any cash dividend for the foreseeable future.
We presently intend to retain earnings to finance future operations,
expansion and capital investment.




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data in the following tables sets forth (a) balance sheet data as of July 31, 2002 and 2003,
and statements of income data for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 derived from our
consolidated financial statements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, which are included
elsewhere in this annual report, and (b) balance sheet data as of July 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, and statements of
operations data for the fiscal years ended July 31, 1999 and 2000, derived from our consolidated financial
statements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, which are not included in this filing. The information below should
be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation and financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
‘ . {in-thousands, except per-share amounts)

Net revenue $ 39124 § 99624 § 183264 §$ 117,768 § 165,526
Direct energy costs : 38,729 85,732 77,281 87,340 128,179
Gross profit . 395 12,892 105,983 30,428 37,347
Other expenses(1) ' : 18,518 21,921 25,195 21,918 24,947
income {loss) from operations {18,123 {9,029) 80,788 8,510 12,400
Loss on litigation awards (422) (116) - - (2,200)
Loss on equity investments . ’ _ - - Co- {160) {567}
Minority interest - - - - 187
Interest income, net 123 499 1593 939 715
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (18,422) (8,646) 82,381- 9,289 10,535
Provision for income taxes - - 21,852 4125 5113
Net income (loss}2) $ (18422) $ (8646) $ 60529 $ 5164 $ 5422
Net income {loss) per common share(3) {4}

Basic $ (084 $ {030) § 206 $ 019 § 019
Diluted $ (084 $ 030) $ 177§ 016 § 0.18
Weighted-average shares outstanding(3) (4)

Basic . ‘ 21,905 28,795 29,385 27,482 27,424
Diluted 21,905 | 28,795 34,152 31,536 30,236

CONSOLIDATED BALANGCE SHEET DATA (in thousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Working capital $ 12428 $ 12803 $ 50184 § 58841 § 56411
Total assets $ 27858 $ 35444 § 107,016 § 101,229 § 125870
Shareholders’ equity(4) : $ 19900 $§ 24236 $ 86037 § 87952 $§ 93,017

(1) Includes stock-based compensation charges (credits) of $5,718, $445, $1,080, $(743) and $0 in the fiscal years ended July 31,
1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operation — Results of Operation and Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for further details.

(2) No cash dividends have been paid on our common stock. Our Series A Convertble Preferred Stock provides for cumulative
dividends, which accrue at the rate of 10% per annum, and are payable at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Such accrued
dividends were $84, $84, $81, $70 and $91 in the fiscal years ended July 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
In addidon, we are subject to a court order with respect to disputed shares of preferred stock that are not currently reflected as
outstanding on our sharcholder list. The validity of these disputed shares of preferred stock is the subject of pending lidgation.
See Ttem 3. Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K. If these disputed shares of preferred stock are
determined to be valid, 2 portion of such shares would accrue dividends at a rate of 12% per annum, while the remainder would
accrue interest at a rate of 14% per annum. Such accrued dividends would have been $42 in fiscal year ended July 31, 2003 and
are reflected in our accompanying financial statements. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for the
computation of earnings per common share.

(3) Per-share information and weighted average shares. outstanding for the years ended July 31, 1999 and 2000 have been
restated to reflect the resolution of the status of our common stock issued to our founder as more fully disclosed in Note 14 of
-the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. -

(4) Per-share information, weighted average shares outstanding and shareholders’ equity for the year ended July 31, 2003 reflect
the 352 shares of preferred stock, referenced in our financial statements as “Other preferred stock,” related to pending
lidgation. See Item 3. Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-X and Notes 6, 12 and 14 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

Our primary business has been the sale of electric power to retail and commercial end-users in California,
Pennsylvania and, beginning in September 2002, Michigan, and the sale of electric power to wholesale customers
in California and Pennsylvania. We are licensed by FERC as a power marketer and by the California, Michigan,
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New York, Texas and Ohio public utilities commissions as an electric services or electric

generation supplier.

As of July 31, 2003, we delivered electricity to approximately 118,000 customers in California, Michigan and
Pennsylvania. The growth of this business depends upon the deregulated status of each state, the availability of
cost-effective energy purchases to us and the acquisition of retail or commercial customers by us.

We do not have our own electricity generation facilities. The power we sell to our customers is
purchased from third-party power generators. During fiscal 2000, in both California and Pennsylvania, we
purchased electricity both under long-term contracts and in the spot market. By the end of fiscal 2001 and
throughout most of fiscal 2002, substandally all of our electricity was purchased under long-term contracts.
During fiscal 2003, we purchased electricity both under long-term contracts and in the spot market.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
In the following comparative analysis, all percentages are calculated based on dollars in thousands.

Year Ended Fuly 31, 2003, Compared to Year Ended Fuly 31, 2002

Net Revenue _

Our net revenue for fiscal 2003 was $165.5 million, an increase of $47.7 million, or 40.6%, from $117.8 million
in fiscal 2002. Net energy sales were $160.0 million, or 96.6%, of our fiscal 2003 net revenue, as
compared to $115.7 million, or 98.3%, of our fiscal 2002 net revenue. Green power credits recognized from the
State of California accounted for the balance of our net revenue.

Energy sales to retail customers constituted $153.4 million, or 95.9%, of our net energy sales for fiscal 2003, as
compared to $97.0 million, or 83.8%, for fiscal 2002. Sales of excess energy in the wholesale markets
constituted $6.5 million, or 4.1%, of our net energy sales for fiscal 2003, as compared to $18.8 million, or 16.2%,
for fiscal 2002, Excess energy is sold into the wholesale market after we have supplied the requirements of our
retail customers. These sales are a natural by-product of balancing the power load used by our customers against
the power we have previously purchased under contracts in anticipation of our forecasted customer demand.
Power is also purchased in this balancing process when required.

We sold 1,120.3 million kilowatt-hours (kWh) at an average retail price per kWh of $0.077 in California during
fiscal 2003, as compared to 775.6 million kWh sold at an average retail price per kWh of $0.085 during fiscal 2002.
This increase was due primarily to the acquisition of large commercial customers from other ESPs. The decrease
in price is partially attributable to the historical procurement charge in the Southern California Edison territory.
For a more complete discussion of the historical procurement charge and related CPUC activites see “Factors
That May Affect Future Results — Historical procurement charges and customer rate changes could adversely
affect our revenue and cash flows in the Southern California Edison udlity district.” We sold 836.5 million kWh
at an average retail price per kWh of $0.060 in Pennsylvania during fiscal 2003, as compared to 468.9 million kWh
sold at an average retail price per kWh of $0.058 during fiscal 2002. This increase was due primarily to the
acquisition of approximately 40,000 customers in Pennsylvania under a bid process that was a part of an electric
utlity restructuring in Pennsylvania. We sold 230.4 million kWh at an average retail price per kWh of $0.058 in
Michigan during fiscal 2003, as compared to no billing during fiscal 2002.

The $56.4 million, or 58.2%, increase in our fiscal 2003 retail energy sales primarily was attributable to an
increase in our customer base as we entered the Michigan market and gained market share in Pennsylvania.

We sold 71.4 million kWh at an average wholesale price per kWh of $0.036 in California during
fiscal 2003, as compared to 313.8 million kWh sold at an average retail price per kWh of $0.023 during fiscal 2002.
We sold 140.1 million kWh at an average wholesale price per kWh of $0.028 in Pennsylvania during fiscal 2003,
as compared to 463.2 million kWh sold at an average wholesale price per kWh of $0.025 during fiscal 2002.
We did not sell any wholesale energy in Michigan during fiscal 2003, as our Michigan supplier was operating
under a load, following full requirements contract. Such contracts provide for all customer power and related
expenses at a predetermined price per kWh.




The $12.3 million, or 65.4%, decrease in our fiscal 2003 excess energy sold into the wholesale market was
attributable primarily to improved forecasting methods employed by us in California and Pennsylvania, and
increased customer load in Pennsylvania which resulted in less excess energy available for sale.

The $3.5 million, or 172.8%, increase in our fiscal. 2003 green power credits was attributable primarily to the
recognition in the current fiscal year of green power credits for the final seven months of fiscal 2002 and the first
eight months of fiscal 2003 due to the reinstatement by the State of California of the Public Purpose Program to
provide incentives to suppliers of renewable power to reduce the cost of such power to certain
customers. This green power credit program was discontinued for periods after March 2003.

We had approximately 118,000 retail customers at July 31, 2003, an increase of 29,000, or 32.6%, from 89,000 at
July 31, 2002. This increase was due primarily to the successful acquisition of approximately 40,000
customers in Pennsylvania under a bid process that was a part of an electric utility restructuring in Pennsylvania.
The addition of these customers occurred in May and June 2003. Qur customer count, net of the 40,000 additions
in Pennsylvanié, was reduced due to our focus on increasing our commercial and industrial customer base, which
have much higher average electricity usage, while reducing the number of residential customers, which have lower
electficity usage.

Direct Energy Costs

Direct energy costs which are recognized concurrent with related energy sales, include the cost of
purchased electric power, fees incurred from various energy-related service providers and energy-related taxes that
cannot be passed through to the customer. Our direct energy costs were $128.2 million for fiscal 2003, an increase
of $40.9 million, or 46.8%, from $87.3 million for fiscal 2002. We purchased 1,207.4 million kWh at an average
price per kWh of $0.043 in California during fiscal 2003, as compared to 1,184.5 million kWh at an average price
per kWh of $0.034 during fiscal 2002. We purchased 1,084.5 million kWh at an average price per kWh of $0.041
in Pennsylvania during fiscal 2003, as compared to 992.9 million kWh at an average price per kWh of $0.039
during fiscal 2002. We purchased 278.0 million kilowatt-hours at an average price per kWh of $0.049 in Michigan
during fiscal 2003, as compared no purchases during fiscal 2002, as this was a new market in fiscal 2003. The fiscal
2003 increase in our direct energy costs primarily was attributable to increased kWh purchases to accommodate
our entry into the Michigan market and additional customers in Pennsylvania as we gained market share. To a
lesser extent, the fiscal 2003 increase was attributable to higher kWh prices paid as a result of increased natural
gas prices incurred by our suppliers.

Selling and Marketing Ixpenses

Our selling and marketing expenses were $4.2 million for fiscal 2003, an increase of $0.7 million, or 20.8%, from
$3.5 million for fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003 increase was primarily attributable to increased marketing efforts
associated with our expansion into the P-ennsylvania and Michigan markets and further market research conducted
on certain states under consideration for future expansion.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses were $20.7 million for fiscal 2003, an increase of $2.3 million, or 12.5%,
from $18.4 million for fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003 increase was primarily attributable to increases in legal expenses
incurred in connection with litigation and the proxy contest related to our last annual meeting of shareholders,
merit compensation and premiums on directors and officers insurance policies, pardally offset by certain cost
savings achieved through the internalization of certain previously outsourced information technology capabilities.
Our general and administratve expenses for fiscal 2002 were reduced by the $0.7 million reversal of previously
recognized stock-based compensation.’ '

Income from Operations
Primarily as a result of all of the preceding factors, our income from operations increased $3.9 million, or 45.7%,
to $12.4 million for fiscal 2003 from $8.5 million for fiscal 2002.

Loss on Litigation Award

We incurred a $2.7 million loss on a litigation award during fiscal 2003, in connection with a lawsuit filed by
several former employees, of which we had previously accrued $0.5 million, with the remaining $2.2 million
balance récognized in fiscal 2003.
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Loss on Equity Investments

We incurred a $0.6 million aggregate loss on equity investments for fiscal 2003, as compared to a $0.2 million
aggregate loss for fiscal 2002. The loss on equity investments for fiscal 2003 primarily reflects our
proportionate recognition of losses under the equity method of accounting from our consolidation of Summit
Energy Ventures, LLC (Summit); namely, the losses incurred by Power Efficiency Corporation (PEC) through
April 30, 2003, and, to a significantly lesser extent, Turbocor BV (Turbocor) through January 2003. Effective
May 1, 2003, we began consolidating PEC as Summit had obtained a majority ownership position in PEC.
Effective February 1, 2003, because Summit’s ownership position in Turbocor had been reduced to a level at
which it no longer exercised significant influence, we began accounting for Turbocor under the cost method of
accounting, whereby any proportionate losses were excluded from our results of operations. In contrast,
fiscal 2002 primarily reflected our proportionate recognition under the equity method of accounting, from our
consolidation of Summit, of the losses incurred by Turbocor and PEC from the dates of Summit’s initial equity
investments in Turbocor and PEC, in January 2002 and June 2002, respectively.

Minority Interest
Minority interest represents that portion of PEC'’s post-consolidation losses that are allocable to the non-Summit
investors based on their aggregate minority ownership interest in PEC.

Interest lncome, Net

Our interest income, net, was $0.7 million for fiscal 2003, a decrease of $0.2 million, or 23.9%,
from $0.9 million for fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003 net decrease resulted from a $0.6 million decrease in interest
income, pardally offset by a $0.4 million decrease in interest expense. The fiscal 2003 decrease in interest income
primarily was attributable to lower yields realized on short-term investments and, to a significantly lesser extent,
lower average investment balances. The fiscal 2003 decrease in interest expense primarily was attributable to the
non-recurrence of $0.4 million of fiscal 2002 interest expense incurred in connection with borrowings under our
then outstanding credit facility, which was terminated in June 2002.

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes
Our income before provision for income taxes was $10.5 million for fiscal 2003, an increase of
$1.2 million, or 13.4%, from $9.3 million for fiscal 2002.

Provision for Income Tanes

QOur provision for income taxes was $5.1 million for fiscal 2003, compared to $4.1 million for fiscal 2002.
Our effective income tax rate was 48.5% for fiscal 2003, compared to 44.4% for fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003
increase in our effective income tax rate was attributable primarily to an increase due to the expiration of certain
stock options in fiscal 2003, the value of which was charged to expense for financial reporting purposes but not
deductible for income tax purposes, partially offset by a decrease in our valuadon allowance as a result of our
utilization of net operating loss carry forwards for federal income tax purposes.

Net Income

Qur net income was $5.4 million for fiscal 2003, an increase of $0.2 million, or 5%, from $5.2 million for fiscal
2002. Our basic and diluted net income per common share was $0.19 and $0.18, respectively, for fiscal 2003, as
compared to $0.19 and $0.16, respectively, for fiscal 2002. The calculation of net income per common share gives
effect to 352,000 shares of preferred stock, referenced in our Consolidated Financial Statements as “Other
convertible preferred stock” related to pending litigation. See Item 3. Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual Report
on Form 10-K and Notes 6, 12 and 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

Year Ended July 31, 2002, Comparved to Year Ended Fuly 31, 2001

Net Revenue

QOur net revenue for fiscal 2002, was $117.8 million, a decrease of $65.5 million, or 35.7%, from $183.3 million
in fiscal 2001. Net energy sales were $115.7 million, or 98.3%, of our fiscal 2002 net revenue, as compared to
$179.3 million, or 97.8%, of our fiscal 2001 net revenue. Green power credits recognized from the State of
California accounted for the balances of our net revenue.




Energy sales to retail customers constituted $97.0 million, or 83.8%, of our net energy sales for fiscal 2002, as
compared to $100.0 million, or 55.7%, for fiscal 2001. Sales of excess energy in the wholesale markets constituted
$18.8 million, or 16.2%, of our net energy sales for fiscal 2002, as compared to $79.3 million, or 44.2%, for fiscal
2001. The very high level of excess energy sold in the wholesale market in fiscal 2001 was the result of the
unprecedented rise in electric power prices in California. These prices already were moving toward normal levels
by the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001.

We sold 775.6 million kWh at an average retail price per kWh of $0.085 in California during fiscal 2002,
as compared to 563.4 million kWh sold at an average retail price per kWh of $0.145 during fiscal 2001. We sold
468.9 million kWh at an average retail price per kWh of $0.058 in Pennsylvania during fiscal 2002, as compared
to 378.6 million kWh sold at an average retail price per kXWh of $0.050 during fiscal 2001.

The $3.0 million, or 3.0%, decrease in our fiscal 2002 retail energy sales was attributable primarily to the price
decrease realized in California, being substantially offset by the volume increases realized in California and
Pennsylvania, and, to a lesser extent, the price increase realized in Pennsylvania. The average retail price per kWh
realized in California dﬁring fiscal 2002 was representative of normal average price whereas the inflated average
retail price realized in California during fiscal 2001 reflected the statewide energy crisis. The volume increases
realized were attributable to increases in the number of commercial customers in California and Pennsylvania
since October 2001 and June 2002, respectively. The price increase realized in Pennsylvania was primarily due to
more energy purchased under fixed price contracts in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001.

We sold 313.8 million kWh of excess power into the wholesale markets at an average price per kWh of $0.023 in
California during fiscal 2002, as compared to 404.7 million kWh sold at an average retail price per kWh of $0.17
during fiscal 2001. We sold 463.2 million kWh at an average wholesale price per kWh of $0.025 in Pennsylvania
during fiscal 2002, as compared to 268.3 million kWh sold at an average wholesale price per kWh of $0.032
during fiscal 2001.

The $60.5 million, or 76.3%, decrease in our fiscal 2002 excess energy sold in the wholesale markets
primarily was attributable to the price decrease realized in California, and, to a significantly lesser extent, the price
decrease realized in Pennsylvania and the volume decrease realized in California. Slightly offsetting the
preceding results was the volume increase realized in Pennsylvania. The volume decrease realized in California
was attributable primarily to us having lower excess balances available for sale in the wholesale market as a result
of our growing retail customer base. The volume increase realized in Pennsylvania was attributable primarily wo
excess balances being available for sale in the wholesale market as a result of decreased retail demand due to more
moderate late summer and winter temperatures than forecast.

The $1.9 million, or 48.5%, decrease in our fiscal 2002 green power credits primarily was attributable to the
expiration of the State of California’s green power credit program in December 2001. The California
legislature subsequently approved reinstating the green power credit program, however, due to program
uncertainty, no revenue from periods subsequent to January 1, 2002 were reflected in fiscal 2002 revenue.

We had approkjmately 89,000 retail customers at July 31, 2002, an increase of 1,000, or 1.1%, from 88,000 at
July 31, 2001.

Direct Energy Costs

Our direct energy costs were $87.3 million for fiscal 2002, an increase of $10.0 million, or 13.0%, from $77.3
million for fiscal 2001. We purchased 1,184.5 million kWh at an average price per kWh of $0.034
in California during fiscal 2002, as compared to 980.1 million kWh sold at an average price per kWh of $0.039
during fiscal 2001. We purchased 992.9 million kWh at an average price per kWh of $0.039 in Pennsylvania during
fiscal 2002, as compared to 662.5 million kWh sold at an average price per kWh of $0.040 during fiscal 2001.

The fiscal 2002 increase in our direct energy costs primarily was attributable to volume increases in Pennsylvania,
and, to a lesser extent, in California, pardally offset by the price decrease realized in California. Our increased
purchases in California and Pennsylvania were to accommodate added retail customers. The price decrease

realized in California primarily was attributable to normalizing energy prices after the energy crisis in fiscal 2001.
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Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses were $3.5 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $0.1 million, or 2.4%,
from $3.6 million for fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 decrease primarily was attributable to a decrease realized in
our payroll expenses, being pardally offset by an increase incurred in our consulting expenses. The decrease
in our payroll expenses was primarily the result of call center personnel attrition. The increase in our
consulting expenses was the result of market research conducted on certain states under consideration for

future service expansion.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses were $18.4 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $3.2 million, or 14.8%,
from $21.6 million for fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 decrease primarily was attributable to a $1.8 million variaton
in stock-based compensation, from a $1.1 million charge in fiscal 2001 to a $0.7 million credit in fiscal 2002.
The fiscal 2002 credit resulted from our reversing of a portion of our fiscal 2001 charge due to a subsequent
decrease in the value of our common stock against which the value of certain unvested variable stock opdons
are continually reassessed. The balance of the fiscal 2002 decrease primarily was attributable to lower legal,
consulting and bad debt expenses, being pardally offset by higher payroll and amortzation expenses as well
as management fees incurred for Summit. The decrease realized in legal expenses for fiscal 2002 primarily was
attributable to fiscal 2001 reflecting non-recurring legal costs associated with a dispute settlement reached with
our founder. The increase realized in payroll expenses primarily was due to the hiring of software development
employees who were formerly engaged as consultants. The increase realized in amortization expense primarily
was attributable to previously capitalized software development costs incurred for our TRIUMPH system.
The management fees incurred for Summit constitute a new expense in fiscal 2002 that we anticipate will be
recurring for the foreseeable future.

Income from Operations
Primarily as a result of the preceding factors, our income from operations decreased by $72.3 million, or 89.5%,
to $8.5 million for fiscal 2002, from $80.8 million for fiscal 2001.

Loss on Equity [nvestments

We incurred a $0.2 million aggregate loss on equity investments for fiscal 2002 as a result of our
consolidation of Summit. This loss primarily reflects our proportionate recogniton under the equity method of
accounting of the losses incurred by Turbocor and PEC from the dates of Summit’s initial equity investments in
them during January 2002 and June 2002, respectively.

Interest Income, Net

Our interest income, net, was $0.9 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $0.7 million, or 41.0%, from $1.6 million
for fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 net decrease resulted from 2 $1.0 million decrease in interest income, partially
offset by a $0.4 million decrease in interest expense. The decrease in interest income primarily was
atributable to significantly lower average interest rates realized on slightly lower average investment balances.
The decrease in interest expense was attributable primarily to lower average outstanding borrowings as a result of
our repayment and termination of a line of credit borrowing facility in June 2002.

Income before Provision for Income Tanes
Our income before provision for income taxes was $9.3 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $73.1 million,

or 88.7%, from $82.4 million for fiscal 2001.

Provision for Income Taxes

Qur provision for income taxes was $4.1 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $17.8 million, or 81.1%, from
$21.9 million for fiscal 2001. Our effectve income tax rate was 44.4% for fiscal 2002, as compared to 26.6%
for fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 increase in our effective income tax rate was attributable primarily to the
comparative fiscal 2001 period reflecting the favorable impact of our release of our valuation allowance as a result
of our utilization of net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes in fiscal 2001 due

to our first year of profitability.

Net Income ,

Qur net income was $5.2 million for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $55.3 million, or 91.5%, from $60.5 million for
fiscal 2001. Our basic and diluted net income per common share was $0.19 and $0.16, respectively, for fiscal 2002,
as compared to $2.06 and $1.77, respectively, for fiscal 2001.




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

General

In recent fiscal years, we have sustained our operations and funded our growth substantially with
internally generated cash flows from operations. Based on our planned operations and growth expectations for the

foreseeable future, we currently do not anticipate requiring any external sources of financing through at least
fiscal 2004, if not beyond.

Consolidated Cash and Cash Equivalents, Working Capital and Current Ratio

Our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $2.1 million, or 4.9%, to $40.9 at July 31, 2003, as
compared with $43.0 million at July 31, 2002. Our working capital decreased by $2.4 million, or 4.1%, to $56.4
million at July 31, 2003, from $58.8 million at July 31, 2002. Our current ratios, which are defined as current assets
divided by current liabilities, were 2.76 and 5.43 at July 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

With our favorable liquidity position, we elected to allow our previously existing $10.0 million line of credit
borrowing facility to expire on June 29, 2002. We currently do not have any established credit facilides
in place for future borrowings. We believe that we would be.able to establish credit facilities at acceptable rates
and terms in the future should it be necessary, although we currently see no need for such facilides through at least
fiscal 2004.

Consolidated Cash Flows
Fiscal 2003 versus Fiscal 2002

Qur operating activities provided $5.6 million in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2003, an increase of
$2.1 million, or 61.6%, from $3.5 million in cash and cash equivalents provided during fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003
increase primarily reflects the $0.2 million increase in our net income and the positive cash flow effects of
increased accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Partially offsetting the increase in cash and cash
equivalents was the negative cash flow effects of increased accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other
assets, and the adding back of lower non-cash charges.

Our investing activities utilized $1.5 million in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2003, as compared to $9.2
million in cash and cash equivalents utilized during fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2003 decrease principally is
attributable to the comparable fiscal 2002 period reflecting substantive initial investments in energy-related
companies made through Summit. To a significantly lesser extent, the fiscal 2003 decrease reflects decreased
purchases for property and equipment offset by the acquisition of a majority ownership in PEC.

Our financing activities utilized $6.2 million in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2003, as compared to $7.7
million in cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activites during fiscal 2002. Financing activities in fiscal
2003 principally reflects the negative cash flow effect of an aggregate increase in our restricted cash and cash

equivalents as a result of the letters of credit required in connection with energy purchase agreements and

a litigation appeal bond. In contrast, financing activities in fiscal 2002 principally reflected the positive cash
flow effect of an aggregate decrease in our restricted cash and cash equivalents as a result of the release of
letters of credit upon the expiration of energy purchase agreements and the deployment of cash by Summit into
investments in energy-related companies. Partially offsetting this positive cash flow effect in fiscal 2002 were
principal repayments of borrowings outstanding under our then existing line of credit facility and repurchases of
outstanding common shares.

Fiscal 2002 versus Fiscal 2001

Our operating activities provided $3.5 million in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2002, a decrease of
$58.4 million, or 94.4%, from the $61.8 million in cash and cash equivalents provided during fiscal 2001.
The fiscal 2002 decrease reflects principally the $35.4 million decrease in cur net income. To a significandy
lesser extent, the fiscal 2002 decrease reflects primarily the negative cash flow effects of increased accounts payable
and other current liabilities and decreased accounts receivable. Slightly offsetting this decrease was the adding
back of increased aggregate non-cash charges.

Our investing activities utilized $9.2 million and $1.2 million in ‘cash and cash equivalents during
fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. The fiscal 2002 increase primarily reflects substantive initial investments
in energy-related companies made through Summit, and, to a significantly lesser extent, increased purchases of
property and equipment. '
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Our financing activities provided $7.7 million in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2002, as compared to

I

1

J $23.8 million in cash and cash equivalents utilized by financing activides during fiscal 2001. Financing activities
1‘ in fiscal 2002 reflected primarily the positive cash flow effect of an aggregate decrease in our restricted cash and
T cash equivalents as a result of the release of letters of credit upon the expiradon of energy purchase agreements
*‘ and the decrease in Summit’s cash account as a result of their investments during the year, partially offset by the
‘ negative cash flow effects of principal repayments of borrowings outstanding under our then-existing line of credit
facility and repurchases of outstanding common shares held by our founder. Financing actvities in fiscal 2001
principally reflected the negative cash flow effect of an aggregate increase in our restricted cash and cash
equivalents as a result of our investment in Summit Energy Ventures, and, to a significantly lesser extent, principal

repayments of borrowings outstanding from our then-existing line of credit facility.
paym g g g
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As a result of the foregoing, our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $1.9 million to $43.0 million
at July 31, 2002 as compared with $41.1 million at July 31, 2001.

Planned Capital Expenditures

Our planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2004 (“fiscal 2004”) are $1.7 million.
Planned capital expenditures include computer hardware and software, office equipment and furniture.
The expenditures are expected to be pro rata throughout the year and funded out of working capital.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractuzl Obligations

We currently are party to a number of supply contracts requiring us to purchase electrical power
covering approximately 81% of the current load servicing requirements. As these contracts contain fixed prices at
which we will be required to make such purchases, our future results of operations for the fiscal periods covered
J by these contracts will be significantly influenced by our then ability to resell this purchased electrical power to
our customers at prices sufficient to cover our direct and indirect costs and to realize a profit.

Our most significant operating leases pertain to our corporate facilities. All of our other operating
leases pertain to various equipment and technology. Certain of these operating leases are noncancellable and
contain rent escalation clauses relating to increases to real property taxes and maintenance costs. We incurred
aggregate rent expense under operating leases of $697,000, $704,000, and $742,000 during fiscal 2001, 2002
and 2003, respectively. ‘ p

We have five executive employment agreements in existence at July 31, 2003 that commit us
l to pay future base salaries. Under these agreements we may also be required to pay bonuses in the event of a
! change of control and/or upon early termination of employment. For a description of the change of control and
severance bonuses with respect to our Named Executive Officers, see Item 11. Executive Compensation -
Employment Agreements of our 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

j The following table shows our contractual commitments as of July 31, 2003:
: Payments due by period (dollars in thousands)

i Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years ~ More than 3 years
Electricity purchase contracts $ 154,079 $ 90,022 § 64,057 $ -
; Operating leases 862 693 169 -
] Employment agreements 2,408 1,491 817 -
Total $ 157,349 $ 92,206 $ 65143 § -

Seasonal and Inflationary Influences
Demand for electrical power is continually influenced, both positively and negatively, by prevailing weather

|

condidons. To the extent that one or more of our markets experiences a prolonged period of unseasonal weather,
we will be required to either attempt to procure additional electricity to service our customers or to sell surplus
electricity in the open market.

i
1
i
E
i
1l
|
]
i
!




Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Accounting policies discussed below are those that we consider to be critical to an understanding of our financial
statements because their application places the most significant demands on our ability to judge the effect of
inherently uncertain matters on our financial results. For all of these policies, we caution that future events rarely
develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment.

o Independent system operator costs — Included in direct energy costs along with electric power
purchased and scheduling coordination costs are the Independent System Operator (ISO) fees. The actual
ISO costs are not finalized until a settlement process by the ISO is performed of each day’s activities of all grid
participants. Prior to the completion of settlement, we estimate these costs based on historical trends and
preliminary settlement information. The historical trends and preliminary information may differ from actual
fees, resulting in the need to adjust the related costs.

o Allowance for doubtful accounts ~ We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from non-payment of customer billings. If the financial condidon of -our customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability- to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. In addition, as a result of market conditions in California during fiscal 2001, the creditworthiness of
several participants in the marketplace with whom we conduct business has deteriorated significantly. For
example, PG&E, which declared bankruptcy, has withheld payments of approximately $1.6 million from their
remittances to us. Although we have filed a Proof of Claim in PG&E’s bankruptcy proceedings to recover these
amounts, we have established an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of these withholdings. If other

utilities declare bankruptcy, additional allowances may be required.

° Unbilled receivables ~ Our customers are billed monthly at various dates throughout the month. Unbilled
receivables represent the amount of electric power delivered to customers at the end of a period, but not yet
billed. Unbilled receivables from sales are estimated by us as the number of kilowatt-hours delivered to the
customer times the average current customer sales price per kilowatt-hour.

°© Legal claims — From timé to time, we may be involved in litigatdon relating to claims arising out of
our operations in the normal course of business. We regularly evaluate our exposure to threatened or pending
litigation and other business contingencies and accrue for estimated losses on such matters in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, “Accountng for Contingencies.” As a result, we have
accrued a total of $2.7 million as of July 31, 2003, for a loss on litigation award in connection with an
acdon brought by former employees. As additional informadon about current or future litigation or other
contingencies becomes available, management will assess whether such information warrants the recording of
additional expense relating to our contingencies. Such additional expense could potentially have a material
impact on our results of operations and financial positdon. See Irem 3., Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, for a description of our pending legal proceedings.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

If competitive restructuring of the electric markets is delayed or does not result in

viable competitive market rules, our business will be adversely affected.

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) has maintained a strong commitment over
the past seven years to the deregulation of electricity markets. This movement would seem to indicate the
contdnuation and growth of a competitive electric retail industry. As of February 2003, 24 states and the District
of Columbia have either enacted enabling legislation or issued a regulatory order to implement retail access.
In 18 of these states, retail access is either currently available to some or all custémers, or will soon be available.
However, in many of these markets the market rules adopted have not resulted in energy service providers being
able to compete successfully with the incumbent utilities and customer switching rates have been low. Only
recently have a small number of markets opened to competition under rules that we believe may offer attractive
competitive opportunities. Our business model depends on other favorable markets opening under viable
competitive rules in a timely manner. In any particular market, there are a number of rules that will ultimately
determine the attractiveness of any market. Markets that we enter may have both favorable and unfavorable rules.
If the trend towards competitive restructuring of retail energy markets does not continue or is delayed or reversed,
our business prospects and financial condition could be materially adversely impaired.
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Retail energy market restructuring has been and will continue to be a complicated regulatory process, with
competing interests advanced not only by relevant state and federal udlity regulators, but also by state
legislators, federal legislators, incumbent udlites, consumer advocacy groups and potential market participants.
As a result, the extent to which there are legitimate competitive opportunities for alternative energy suppliers in
a given jurisdiction may vary widely and we cannot assure shareholders that regulatory structures will offer us
competitive opportunities to sell energy to consumers on a profitable basis. The regulatory process could
be negatively impacted by a number of factors, including interruptions of service and significant or rapid price
increases. The legislative and regulatory processes in some states take prolonged periods. In a number of
jurisdictions, it may be many years from the date legislation is enacted untl the retail markets are open

for competition.

In addition, although most retail energy market restructuring has been conducted at the state and local levels, bills
have been proposed in Congress in the past that would preempt state law concerning the restructuring of the retail
energy markets. Although none of these initiadves has been successful, we cannot assure shareholders that federal
legislation will not be passed in the future that could materially adversely affect our business.

We face many uneertainties ¢hat may cause sudstantizl cperating losses and we ecanrot
assure snareholders that we will continue to be profitable.

We have recognized significant revenue and our ability to generate such revenue is subject to uncertainty.
In addition, we intend to increase our operating expenses to develop our business, including brand development,
marketing and other promotional activities and the continued development of our billing, customer care and

power procurement infrastructure. Our ability to sustain profitability will depend on, among other things:

© Gur ability to attract and to retain a critical mass of customers at a reasonable cost;

° Cur ability to develop internal corporate organization and systems; |

° Thé continued compettive restructuring of retail energy markets with viable competitive market rules; and
© Qur ability to manage effectively our energy requirements and to sell our energy at a sufficient margin.

We may have difficuity obtaining & sufficient number of customers.
We anticipate that we will incur significant costs as we enter new markets and pursue customers by
udlizing a variety of marketing methods. In order for us to recover these expenses, we must attract and retain a

large number of customers to our service.

We may experience difficulty attracting customers because many customers may be reluctant to switch to a new
company for the supply of a commodity as critical to their well-being as electric power. A major focus of our
marketing efforts will be to convince customers that we are a reliable provider with sufficient resources
to meet our commitments. If our marketing strategy is not successful, our business, results of operations, and
financial condition will be materially adversely affected.

We depend uper (nternally developed systems and nrocessaes to »rovide several

critical funetions for our business, and the loss of these funetions could materially
adversely impact our business.

We have developed our own systems and processes to operate our back-office functions, including
customer enrollment, metering, forecasting, settlement and billing. Problems that arise with the performance
of our back-office functions could result in increased expenditures, delays in the launch of our commercial
operations into new markets, or unfavorable customer experiences that could materially adversely affect our
business strategy. Also, any interruption of these services could be disruptive to our business.

Substantial fluetuations in electricity prices or the cost of transmitting and distributing
electricity could have a material adverse effect on us.

To provide electricity to our customers, we must, from time to time, purchase electricity in the short-term or “spot”
wholesale energy markets, which can be highly volatile. In partcular, the wholesale electric power
market can experience large price fluctuations during peak load periods. Furthermore, to the extent that we enter
into contracts with customers that require us to provide electricity at a fixed price over an extended period of time,
and to the extent that we have not purchased electricity to cover those commitments, we may incur losses caused




by rising wholesale electricity prices. Periods of rising electricity prices may reduce our ability to compete with
incumbent utilities because their regulated rates may not immediately increase to reflect these increased costs.
Energy Service Providers like us take on the risk of purchasing power for an uncertain load and if the load does
not materialize it leaves us in a “long” position that would be resold into the wholesale electricity market. Sales of
this surplus electricity may be at prices below our-cost. Or, if unanticipated load appears that may result in an
insufficient supply of electricity, we would need to purchase the additional supply. These purchases could be at
prices that are higher than our sales price to our customers. Either situation could create losses for us as we are
exposed to the price‘w'/olatility of the wholesale spot markets. Any of these contingencies could substantially
increase our costs of operation. Such factors could have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition.

We are dependent on local utilities for distribution of electricity to our customners over their distribution networks.
If these local utilities are unable to properly operate their distribution networks, or if the operation of their
distribution networks is interrupted for periods of time, we will be unable to deliver electricity to our
customers during those interruptions. This would result in lost revenue to us, which would adversely impact the
résults of our operations.

Historical procurement charges and customer rate changes in the Southern California
Edison wtility district could adversely affect our revenue and cash flows.

Under a Settlement agreement with the California Public Utlity Commission (CPUC), Southern' California
Edison (SCE) was authorized to recoup $3.6 billion in debt incurred during the energy crisis of 2000-2001 from
all customers. This debt was to be collected under the Procurement Related Obligations Account (PROACT)
from bundled (non-direct access) customers and under the Historical Procurement Charge (HPC) from Direct
Access (DA) customers. '

In July 2002, the CPUC issued an interim order implementing the HPC sought by SCE. This interim order
authorized SCE to collect $391 million in HPC charges from all DA customers by reducing their Procured
Energy Credit (PE Credit) by $0.027 per kWh beginning July 27, 2002. The lowered PE Credit continued until
an exit fee for DA customers was approved by the CPUC. Effective January 1, 2003, it was reduced to $0.01 per
kWHh. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2003, we estimate that HPC charges have impacted our sales and pretax
earnings by a range of $4.8 million to $6.0 million. We are unable to precisely determine the actual HPC charges
applied to our customers by SCE because there are different charges, by customer type, and this charge is only on
the electricity usage above the monthly baseline usage allocation.

On September S, 2003, the CPUC issued Decision 03-09-016 granting SCE’s request to recover
additional shortfall and authorizing the HPC balance to be revised to $473 million; however, the $0.01 per kWh
monthly charge remained in place. As of August 1, 2003, SCE revised its billing methodology to a “bottoms-up”
design effectively doing away with the PE Credit and the net effect of the HPC on our rates. While the HPC no
longer impacts our rate calculations going forward, a recent SCE rate reducton includes the impact of the HPC.
This rate reduction will impact sales and pretax profit in the SCE district. The rate reductlon will be in place in
2004 and will approximate the effect of the HPC dollar i impact of 2003.

Recently, SCE acknowledged that the PROACT debt was paid in full by bundled customers at the end of July
2003. As a result, on August 1, 2003, all SCE rates were lowered. As a direct result, to retain our customers in the
SCE uiility district, we lowered our customer rates proportionately. Our estimate of the annual financial impact
of this rate reduction is a decline in sales and pretax profit during fiscal 2004, in the range of $3.0 to
$3.5 million. This reduction is separate from, but in addition to, the HPC reduction seen in 2003.

These changes on our customers in the SCE district will continue to cause a significant impact
on our revenue and cash flow; however, we do not expect that it will preclude us from participating in the
California market.

Some suppliers of electricity have been experiencing detericrating credit quality.

We continue to actively manage our counterparty credit portfolio to attempt to reduce the impact of a
potential counterparty default. As of July 31, 2003, the majority of our courterparties are rated investment-grade

or above by the major rating agencies. These ratings are subject to change at any dme and with no advance
warning. This situation could have an adverse impact on the source of our electricity purchases.
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If the wholesale price of electricity decreases, we may be required to post letters of
erecit to secure our obligations under our long-term energy contracts.

Since the price of the electricity we purchase under long-term contracts is fixed over the term of the contracts, if the
market price of wholesale electricity decreases below the contract price, the power generator may require us to post
security in the form of a letter of credit to hedge against our potential default on the contract. If we are required to
post such security, a portion of our cash would become restricted, which could adversely affect cur liquidity.

We are required to rely om utilities with whom we will be competing te perform some
funetions for our customers.

Under the regulatory structures adopted in most jurisdictions, we will be required to enter into
agreements with local incumbent udlities for use of the local distributon systems, and for the creation and
operation of functional interfaces necessary for us to serve our customers. Any delay in these negotiations or our
inability to enter into reasonable agreements with those udlities could delay or negatively impact our ability
to serve customers in those jurisdictions. This could have a materially negative impact on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We are dependent on local utilities for maintenance of the infrastructure through which electricity is delivered to
our customers. We are limited in our ability to control the level of service the utilides provide to our customers. Any
infrastructure failure that interrupts or impairs delivery of electricity to our customers could have a negative effect
on the satisfaction of our customers with our service, which could have a materially adverse effect on our business.

Regulations in many markets require that the services of reading our customers’ energy meters and the billing and

-collection process be retained by the local utility. In those states, we will be required to rely on the local utility to

provide us with our customers’ energy usage data and to pay us for our customers’ usage based on what the local
utility collects from our customers. We may be limited in our ability to confirm the accuracy of the information
provided by the local utlity and we may not be able to control when we receive payment from
the Iocal utility. The local udlity’s systems and procedures may limit or slow down our ability to create a supplier
relationship with our customers that would delay the tdming of when we can begin to provide electricity to
our new customers. If we do not receive payments from the local utility on a timely basis, our working capital

may be impaired.

ln some markets, we are required to bear eredit risk and dilling responsibility

for our customers.

In some markets, we are responsible for the billing and collection functions for our customers. In these markets,
we may be limited in our ability to terminate service to customers who are delinquent in payment. Even if we
terminate service to customers who fail to pay their udlity bill in a dmely manner, we may remain liable
to our suppliers of electricity for the cost of the electricity and to the local utilities for services related to the
transmission and distribution of electricity to those customers. The failure of our customers to pay their bills in a
timely manner or our failure to maintain adequate billing and collection programs could materially adversely
affect our business.

We face strong competition from incumbent utilities and other competitors.

In some markets, our principal competitor may be the local incumbent utdlity company or unregulated udility
affiliates. The incumbent utlities have the advantage of long-standing relationships with their customers and they
may have longer operating histories, greater financial and other resources and greater name recognition in their
markets than we do. In addition, incumbent utlities have been subject to regulatory oversight and
thus have a significant amount of experience regarding the regulators’ policy preferences as well as a critical
economic interest in the outcome of proceedings concerning their revenues and terms and conditions of service.
Incumbent utilides may seek to decrease their tariffed retail rates to limit or to preclude the opportunities for
competitive energy suppliers and otherwise seek to establish rates, terms and conditions to the disadvantage of
competitive energy suppliers.




Some of our competitors, including incumbent utilities, have formed alliances and joint ventures in order to
compete in the restructured retail electricity industry. Many customers of these incumbent utlities may decide to
stay with their long-time energy provider if they have been satsfied with their service in the past. Therefore, it
may be difficult for us to compete against incumbent utilities and their affiliates for customers who are satisfied
with their historical utility provider.

In addition to competition from the incumbent utilites and their affiliates, we ‘may face competition from a
number of other energy service providers, and other energy industry participants who may develop
businesses that will compete with us in both local and national markets. We also may face competition from other
nationally branded providers of consumer products and services. Some of these competitors or potential
competitors may be larger and better capitalized than us.

Our revenues and results of operations are subject to markert risks that are beyond our control,
We sell electricity that we purchase from third-party power generation companies to our retail customers on a
contractual basis. We are not guaranteed any rate of return through mandated rates, and our revenues and results
of operations are likely to depend, in large part, upon prevailing market prices for electricity in our regional
markets and other competitive markets. These market prices may fluctuate substandally over relatively short
periods of time. These factors could have an adverse impact on our revenues and results of operations.

Volatility in market prices for electricity results from multiple factors, including:
© Weather conditions;

° Seasonality;

© Unexpected changes in customer usage;

© Transmission or transportation constraints or inefficiencies;

© Demand for electricity;

° Natural gas, crude oil and refined products, and coal supply availability to generators from whom we
purchase electricity;

© Natural disasters, wars, embargoes and other catastrophic events; and
o Federal, state and foreign energy and environmental regulation and legislation.

Our results of operation and financial condition could be affected by pending and future litigation.

We are currently a defendant in sevefal‘pending lawsuits. We believe our substantive and procedural defenses in
each of these cases are meritorious, but we cannot predict the outcome of any such litigation.
In additon, we may become subject to additional lawsuits in the future. If we are held liable for significant
damages in any lawsuit, our operations and financial condition may be harmed. In addition, we could incur
substantial expenses in connection with any such litigation, including substantial fees for attorneys and other
professional advisors. These expenses could adversely affect our operations and cash position if they are material
in amount. See Item 3., Legal Proceedings of our 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a description of our

current material legal proceedings.
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QUANTIVATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We do not have or use any derivative insoruments to hedge the financial risks of our investments, nor do we have
any plans to enter into such instruments. We generally invest cash equivalents in high-quality, short-term credit
instruments consisting primarily of high credit quality money market funds, bankers acceptance notes and
government agency securities with maturities of 90 days or less. We do not expect any material loss from our
invesunents and, therefore, believe that our potential interest rate exposure is not material. We do not currently
invoice custorners in any currency other than the United States dollar and we do not currently incur significant
expenses denominated in foreign currencies. Accordingly, we believe ‘that we are not currentdy subject to

significant risk as a result of currency fluctuations.

Since we do not generate any of the electricity that we sell, our business has exposure to market volatility in prices
of electricity. To mitgate risks associated with this price volatility, we have entered into a number of fixed-priced
contracts for the purchase of electricity through the wholesale electricity market. Nevertheless,
to the extent demand from our customers exceeds the supply we have obtained through fixed-price contracts, we
are subject to wholesale price voladlity risk.

An electricity price change of per $0.01 kWh, has an estimated annual impact on our net revenue of:

California $ 11.8 million
Pennsylvania $ 16.3 million
Michigan $ 9.3 million

As of July 31, 2003, we have not used derivative instruments to hedge any of our exposure to changes in forward
electricity prices. Beginning in fiscal 2004, we may open a brokerage account with a futures commission merchant
that would allow us to utlize exchange traded futures contracts on electricity as part of our overall
strategy with respect to hedging our forward price risk exposure.

Because all of our energy sales and purchases, and substantially all of our other purchases, are transacted or
denominated in United States dollars, we currently are not materially susceptble to currency market risks.

Since we had no short or long-term debt outstanding at July 31, 2003, our only exposure to interest rate risks is
limited to our investment of excess cash balances in interest-bearing instruments. However, as our
practice has been, and currenty continues to be, to only invest in high-quality debt instruments with maturides
of 90 days or less, we currently are not materially susceptible to interest rate risks.




RIPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Commonwealth Energy Corporation

~ We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Commonwealth Energy Corporation as of
July 31, 2002 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. ’

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentadon. W believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. -

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Commonwealth Energy Corporation at July 31, 2002 and 2003, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2003, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

M'{?WMP |

Orange County, California
October 24, 2003 '

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (in thousands, except per-share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 2001 2002 2003

Net revenue : $ 183,264 $ 117,768 $ 165,526

Direct energy costs 17,281 87,340 128,179

Gross profit 105,983 30,428 37,347
‘ Selling and marketing expenses 3,597 3,510 4,240
General and administrative expenses 21,598 18,408 20,707
| Income from operations 80,788 8,510 12,400
1 f Loss on litigation award — — {2,200}
f Loss on equity investments — {160} {567)
- Minority interest — — 187
Interest income, net 1,593 939 715

Income before provisian for income taxes 82,381 9,289 10,535

Provision for income taxes 21,852 4,125 5,113

Netincome $ 60,528 § 5,164 $ 5422

Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 2.06 $ 0.19 3 0.19
Diluted $ 1.77 $ 016 $ 018

The accompanying notes ave an integral pavt of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands)

Fuly 31 2002 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - $ 43,042 $ 40,921
Accounts receivable, net 21,340 37,861
Prepaid income taxes 1,921 ~
Deferred income tax asset 1,850 2,772
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,965 6,920
Total current assets 72,118 88,474
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 14,186 20,773
Investments 7,453 5,362
Deposits n 4,207
Property and equipment, net 3,912 2,984
Goodwilt - 3,007
Intangible assets 1,070 1,063
Deferred income tax assets 2,119 -~
Total assets - $101,229 $125,870
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities: -
Accounts payable $ 8969 $ 24,936
Accrued liabilities 4,308 7,127
Total current liabilities 13,277 32,063
Deferred income tax liabilities - 187
Total liabilities 13,217 32,250
Minority interest - 603
Shareholders’ equity:
Series A convertible preferred stock — 10,000 shares authorized with no par value;
775 and 609 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2003, respectively 820 700
Other convertible preferred stock — 352 shares reflected as outstanding in 2003 - 155
Common stock — 50,000 shares authorized with no par value; 27,334 and 27,645
shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2003, respectively 57,148 56,853
Retained earnings 29,984 35,309
Total sharéholders' equity 87,952 93,017
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $101,229 $125,870

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (in thousands)

} . Series A Other Retained
3 Convertible Convertible Egrnings
Common Stock Preferved Srock Preferved Stock  (Aecumulated

‘ Shares Amount  Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit)  Total
Balance at July 31, 2000 29,333  $ 58,740 939 $ 1,054 - - $(35558) $124236
i Exercise of stock options 103 6 - - - - - 6
Compensation charge related
g " to settlement of employee

o stock option disputes - . 140 - - - - - 140
P Compensation charge related
e to performance-based
| — stock options - 1,080 - - - - - 1,080
‘ Income tax benefits arising
from exercise of stock options ‘ - 339 - - - - - 339
Cumulative unpaid dividends on
convertible preferred stock - - - 81 - - (81) -
Payment of dividends on .
preferred stock - - - (217) - - - (217}
Repurchase of preferred stock (76) - (76) (76) - - - (76)
Net income and
‘ comprehensive income - - - - - - 60,529 60,529
r Balance at July 31, 2001 29,360 60,305 863 842 - - 24,890 86,037
‘; Exercise of stock options . 65 27 - - - - - 27

Compensation charge related

to settlement of employee

stock option disputes - 2 - - - - - 2
Compensation charge related

to performance-based

stock options - (743} - ~ - - - (743)
Repurchase of founder’s shares (1,175) (2,400) - - - - - {2,400}
Cancellation and return of founder's
accommodaticn shares (828) -~ - ~ - - - -
Income tax henefits arising
| from exercise of stock options - (43) - - - - - (43)
‘ Cumulative unpaid dividends on
j convertible preferred stock - - - 70 - - (70) -
‘ Payment of dividends on
preferred stock ) - - - {30) - - - (30)
Repurchase of preferred stock (88) - (88) (62) - - - (62)
Net income and
comprehensive income . - - - -~ - - 5,164 5,164
Balance at July 31, 2002 27,334 57,148 775 820 - - 29,984 87,952
Exercise of stock options 483 15 - ~ - - - 15
Cancellation of commaon shares (6) (14) - - - - - (14)
Income tax benefits arising
‘ from exercise of stock options - 363 - - - - - 363
‘ Reversal of income tax benefit due
1 to expiration of stock options - (659) - ~ - - - (659}
‘ Cumulative unpaid dividends on .
convertible preferred stock - ~ - 55 - 42 (97) -
Payment of dividends on Series A
{ convertible preferred stock - - - {92} - - - {92}
‘ Reflection of Other i
convertible preferred stock(a) - ~ - - 352 13 - 13
Cancellation of Series A :
; convertible preferred stock (166) ~ (166) (83) - - - (83)
! Net income and
g comprehensive income : - ~ - - - - 5422 5,422
‘ Balance at July 31, 2003 27,645 § 56,853 603 $ 700 352 $155 § 35309 $93017

(a) Adjustment based on court action (see Notes 12 and 14).

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (zn thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31, © 2001 2002 2003
Cash flows from operating activities ‘

Net income $ 60529 § 5164 $ 5422

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation : 861 1,308 1,461
Amortization _ ’ 53 53 238
Provision for doubtful accounts i 4,666 2,313 1,709 ' S_\
Stock-based compensation charge (revefsal) B 1,080 (743) - w
Tax benefit (provision) from exercise of stock options 339 (43) 363 —
Reversal of income tax benefit due to expiration of stock options - - (659)
Deferred income tax {benefit) provision ‘(9,279) . 5310 1,384
Minority interest in loss of consolidated entity - - 603

Changes in operating assets and linbilities:

Accounts receivable, net ‘ 3,095 (7,121) (18,231)
Prepaid expenses and other assets ' (4,674) 185 (4,368)
Accounts payable : : 1,256 419 14,872
Accrued liabilities and other 3,902 (3,378} 2,820
Net cash provided by operating activities 61,828 3,468 5614

Cash flows from investing activities
=l

Purchase of property and equipment ‘ ) (1,150) {1,615) {438)
Purchase of intangible assets - {178) (126}
Acquisition of majority ownership in PEC, net of cash : ' - - (580)
Summit Energy investments ~ - (7,452) (335}
Net cash used in investing activities ‘ (1,150) {9,245) (1,479)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of line of credit {1,393) (3,888) -
Repurchase of common stock . - (2,400 {14)
Repurchase or cancellation of Series A convertible preferred stock (76) (63} ©(83)
Dividends paid on Series A convertible preferred stock {217 (30) (92)
Reflection of Other convertible preferred stock - - 113

Net cash used in settlement of employee stock option dispute - 2 -
Proceeds from exercises of stock options 6 27 15

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash (22,097) 14,057 (6,195)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (23,777} 7,705 (6,256)
Increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 36,901 1,828 (2121)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 4,213 4114 43,042

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 41,114 $43042 $ 40,921

Cash paid for:

Interest $ 726 $ 30 % 18

Income taxes $ 32901 - § 3405

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

I. Nature of Business

Commonwealth Energy Corporation (“Commonwealth” or the “Company”) is an energy services company.
The Company provides retail electric power to its residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers
in the deregulated California, Michigan and Pennsylvania electricity markets. The Company is licensed by the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) as a power marketer and is licensed to supply retail electric
power by applicable state agencies in California, Pennsylvania, Michigan, New Jersey, New York, Texas and Ohio.

The Company does not have its own electricity generation facilities. The power the Company sells to its
customers is purchased from third-party power generators. The electric power the Company sells to its retail
customers is delivered to its customers by incumbent electric utilities. The incumbent electric utilities measure
electric power usage by the Company’s customers and bill most of its customers on its behalf. The Company plans
to enter new deregulated electric power markets and to offer a variety of energy-related products and services in
the future. The Company also sells surplus electric power not needed to meet its retail customers’ requirements
in wholesale electricity markets. The Company only sells this excess power to assist in balancing its energy supply
with the demand of its retail customers. The Company does not trade in the wholesale electricity markets for

speculative purposes.

Commonwealth has three wholly-owned subsidiaries: electricAmerica, Inc., UtiliHost, Inc. and electric.com, Inc.
Each of these subsidiaries is incorporated in the State of Delaware, but as of yet, none of them is operational. The
Company also holds a majority interest in Summit Energy Ventures, LLC (Summit), a joint venture that invests
in companies that manufacture or market energy efficiency products. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company include the accounts of Summit and the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include its wholly-owned subsidiaries and the accounts of
its controlled investment in Summit Energy Ventures, LLC (Summit) and its majority ownership in
Power Efficiency Corporation (PEC). All material intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts and timing of revenue and expenses, the reported amounts and classification of assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates and assumptions are based on the
Company’s historical experience as well as management’s future expectatons. As a result, actual results could
differ from management’s estimates and assumptions. The Company’s management believes that its most
significant estimates herein relate to revenue and cost recognition, unbilled receivables, the allowance for doubtful
accounts and loss contingencies, particularly those associated with litigation.

Reclassifications

The Company has reclassified certain prior fiscal-year amounts in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements to be consistent with the current fiscal year’s presentation. During its fiscal 2003 fourth
quarter, the Company deemed it more appropriate to reclassify its Pennsylvania gross receipts taxes to direct
energy costs from general and administrative expenses. Prior year amounts reclassified from general and
administrative expenses were $666 and $1,143 for fiscal 2001 and 2002, respectively.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

Revenue and Cost Recognition
Energy sales are recognized as the electric power is delivered to customers and green power credits are recognized
upon the fulfillment by the Company of all related obligations, provided collection is deemed probable.

Direct energy costs, which are recognized concurrent with related energy sales, include the cost of purchased
electric power, fees incurred from various energy-related service providers and energy-related taxes. Independent
System Operator (ISO) fees are not determinable undl the ISO completes a settlement process for each day’s
activities. Pending such settlements, the Company estimates and accrues for these ISO fees based on preliminary
settdement information. ‘

The Company’s net revenue is comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 2001 2002 2003

Retail energy sales $ 99,981 $ 96,960 $ 153,430
Excess energy sold - 79,304 18,757 6,496

Net energy sales 179,285 115,717 159,926
Green power credits - 3.979 2,051 5,600

Net revenue $ 183,264 $ 117,768 $ 165,526

Major Customers
Two wholesale customers, the State of California’s Department of Water Resources and the California Power
Exchange, individually accounted for 22.0% and 10.6% of the Company’s consolidated net revenue in fiscal 2001.

~ No individual customer accounted for ten percent or more of the Company’s consolidated net revenue in fiscal
2002 or 2003.

Operating Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses principally consist of costs incurred for sales and marketing personnel and
promotional and advertising activities. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $253, $129 and $92
for fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

General and administrative expenses principally consist of costs incurred for all other corporate personnel, rent,
utilities, telecommunications, insurance, legal fees, and other miscellaneous corporate costs, including provisions
made for uncollectible accounts receivable, and the depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets
(see below for details regarding stock-based compensation charges). '

Net Income per Commeon Share

Net income per common share — Basic has been computed by dividing net income available to common
shareholders, after any preferred stock dividends, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the fiscal year. Net income per common share — Diluted has been computed by giving additional effect in
the denominator to the dilution that would have occurred, under the treasur& stock and if-converted methods, as
applicable, had outstanding stock options, stock purchase warrants and convertdble debt been exercised or
converted into additional common shares.

Stock-Based Compensation

As allowed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (SFAS No. 123), “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company has elected to retain the compensation measurement principles of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB No. 25),
and its related interpretations for stock options issued to employees and outside directors. Under APB No. 25,
compensation cost is recognized at the measurement date for the amount, if any, that the fair value of the
Company’s common stock exceeds the option exercise price. The measurement date is the date at which both the
number of options and the exercise price for each option are known. The Company recognized stock-based
compensation charges (credits) of $1,080, $(743) and $0 during fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

On December 31, 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) amended the transition and disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 123 through the issuance of SFAS No. 148 (SFAS No. 148), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends the existing disclosures to make more frequent
and prominent disclosure of stock-based compensation expense beginning with financial statements for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh amounts)

If the Company had accounted for its stock-based employee and outside directors compensation under the
minimum fair value recognition and measurement principles of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s reported net
income amounts would have been adjusted to the pro forma net income amounts presented below:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 2001 2002 2003
Net income as reported $ 60529 $ 5164 $ 5422
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included

in net income, net of related tax effects 648 (445) -
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined i

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects {301) (382) (382)
Pro forma netincome $ 60876 $ 4337 $ 5040

Egrnings per share:

Basic — as reported 3 2.06 $ 019 $ 019
Basic — pro forma $ 2.07 $ 018 $ 018
Diluted — as reported $ 1.77 $ 016 $ o018
Diluted — pro forma 3 1.79 $ 014 $ 017

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the minimum value method with
the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 2001 2002 2003
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 6.0% 6.0% 4.0%
Average expected life in years 5.0 41 47
Expected dividends None None None

The Company does not include volatlity as there is not an active market for the Company’ stock. The estimated
fair values for stock options granted during fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003 were $3.05, $1.86 and $1.86, respectively.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity date of three months or less
at the date of purchase. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with highly rated financial
institutions, thereby minimizing any associated credit risks.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable consist of billed and unbilled receivables from customers and green power
credits receivable from the State of California. The Company’s customers are billed monthly at various dates
throughout the month. Unbilled receivables represent the amount of electric power delivered to customers as of
the end of the period, but not yet billed. Unbilled receivables from customers are estimated by the Company to
be the number of kilowatt-hours (kWh) delivered times the current customer average sales price per kWh.

Credit Risk and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s exposure to credit risk concentration is substandally limited to those incumbent udlity
companies that collect and remit receivables, on a daily basis, from the Company’s individually insignificant and
geographically dispersed customers within the states of California, Pennsylvania and Michigan. The Company
regularly monitors the financial condition of each such incumbent utility company and currently believes that
its susceptibility to any individually significant write-offs as a result of concentratons of customer accounts
receivable with incumbent udlity companies is remote.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts, which represents management’s best
estmate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. Management determines the allowance
based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, and other currently available evidence (see Note 7).




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

Deferred Income Taxes ‘

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future income tax benefits
or consequences, based on enacted laws, of temporary tming differences between tax and financial statement
reporting. If appropriate, deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance for the amount of any tax
benefits that more likely than not, based on current circumstances, are not expected to be realized.

Restricted Cash and Cash Eguivalents
" Cash and cash equivalents which the Company currently can not access, as they are pledged as collateral or
invested in and held by Summit, are reported as restricted.

Property and Equipment ,

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs which do not extend the useful life of the
related property or equipment are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation of property and equipment has
been computed using the straight-line method over estimated economic useful lives of five to ten years.

Certain software development costs incurred on significant projects for internal use, primarily consistihg
of third-party system development costs incurred during the application development stage, are capitalized.
These capitalized costs, once placed in service, are amortized using the straight-line method over estimated
economic useful lives of three to five years.

Goodwill

Goodwill resulting from Summit’s majority ownership in PEC is not amortized into results of operations but
instead is reviewed for impairment, written down, and charged as expense to results of operations in fiscal
periods in which the recorded value of goodwill is more than its implied - fair value. Estimates of fair value are
primarily determined using discounted cash flows and are based on the Company’s best estimate of future revenue
and operaﬁng costs and general market conditions. This approach uses significant assumptions, including
projected amounts and timing of future cash flows, the discount rate reflecting the risk inherent in future cash
flows, and the terminal growth rate.

Intangible Assets

Direct costs incurred in acquiring intangible assets, primarily consisting of the Company’s
1-800-Electric telephone number, rights to eight internet domain names and a covenant not to compete,
have been capitalized. Each intangible asset is being subsequently amortized over the shorter of its statutory,
contractual or esdmated economic useful life, which collectively range from 2 to 20 years. Aggregate amortization
expense for these intangible assets was §53, $53 and $238 for fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

lrmpairment of Long-Lived Assets

Management, on at least a quarterly basis, evaluates each of the Company’s long-lived assets for
impairment by comparing the related estimated future cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, to its net book value.
If impairment is indicated, the net book value is reduced to an amount equal to the estimated future cash flows,
on an appropriately discounted basis.

Fair Value of Financial [nstruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable. The carrying amounts of these financial instruments are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at amounts considered by management to materially approximate their fair values due
to their immediate or short-term nature.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets” (SFAS No. 142), which
revises the accounting for purchased goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives will no longer be systematically amortized into operating
results. Instead, each of these assets will be tested, in the absence of an indicator of possible impairment, at least

annually, and upon an indicator of possible impairment, immediately.

| F23




| F24

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continuad)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No. 143).
SFAS No. 143 requires entides to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period
in which it is a cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is
accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related
obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-lived Assets” (SFAS No. 144). SFAS No. 144 was issued to resolve certain implementation issues that had
arisen under SFAS No. 121. Under SFAS No. 144, a single uniform accounting model is required to be used for
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, whether previously held and used or newly acquired, and certain
addidonal disclosures are required.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (SFAS No. 145). SFAS No. 145 updates, clarifies and
simplifies existing accounting pronouncements, by rescinding SFAS No. 4, which required all gains and losses
from extinguiskment of debt to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item, net of related
income tax effect. As a result, the criteria in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30 (APBO No. 30) will
now be used to classify those gains and losses. Additionally, SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13 to require that
certain lease modifications that have economic effects similar to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for in
the same manner as sale-leaseback transactions. Finally, SFAS No. 145 also makes technical corrections to existing
pronouncements. While those corrections are not substantive in nature, in some instances, they may change

accounting pracdce.

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 145 that amended SFAS No. 13, as required, on May 15, 2002,
for transactions occurring after such date with no material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The
Company adopted SFAS Nos. 142, 143 and 144, as well as the remaining provisions of SFAS No. 145, as required, on
August 1, 2002, with no material impact on its accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
(SFAS No. 146). SFAS No. 146 was issued to address the financial accounting and reporting for costs associated
with exit or disposal actvities, unless specifically excluded. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost
associated with a covered exit or disposal acdvity be recognized and measured initially at its fair value in the period
in which the liability is incurred, except for a liability for one-time termination benefits that is incurred over time.
If employees are not required to render service until they are terminated in order to receive the
one-time termination benefits or if employees will not be retained to render service beyond the minimum
retention period (as dictated by existing law, statute or contract, or in the absence thereof, 60 days), a liability for
the termination benefits shall be recognized and measured at its fair value at the communication date. If employees
are required to render service until they are terminated in order to receive the one-time termination benefits and
will be retained to render service beyond the minimum retenton period, a liability for the terminaton benefits
shall be measured initially at the communication date based on the fair value of the liability as of the termination
date. The liability shall be recognized ratably over the future service period. SFAS No. 146 also dictates that a
liability for costs to terminate an operating lease or other contract before the end of its term shall be recognized
and measured at its fair value when the entity terminates the contract in accordance with the contract terms.
A liability for costs that will continue to be incurred under a contract for its remaining term without economic
benefit to the entity is to be recognized and measured at its fair value when the entity ceases using the right
conveyed by the contract. SFAS No. 146 further dictates that a liability for other covered costs associated with
an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured at its fair value in the period in which the liability is
incurred. The Company adopted SFAS No. 146, as required, on January 1, 2003, with no material impact on its
accompanying consolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45). FIN 45
requires that a liability be recorded in the guarantor’s balance sheet upon issuance of a guarantee.
In addidon, FIN 45 requires disclosures about the guarantees that an entity has issued, including a reconciliation
of changes in the entity’s product warranty liabilities. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN
45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guaranteés issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of
the guarantor’s fiscal year-end. The Company adopted FIN 45, as required, on January 1, 2003, with no material
impact on its accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and
Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123”7 (SFAS No. 148). SFAS No. 148 amended SFAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS No. 123) to provide for alternative methods of transition for
an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. SFAS No. 148 further amends the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123 and APBO No. 28 to
require prominent annual and interim disclosures about the effects on reported net income or loss of an entity’s
accounting policy decisions with respect to stock-based employee compensation. As the Company continues to
account for stock-based employee compensation under the intrinsic value based method allowed by APBO No.
25, the Company’s adoption of the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, as required, on August 1, 2002 had no
impact on'its accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(FIN 46). This interpretation of Accounting Research Bulledn No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,”
addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities that possess certain
characteristics. FIN 46 requires that if a business enterprise has a controlling financial interest in a variable

interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of the activities of the variable interest entity must be included in

the consolidated financial statements with those of the business enterprise. FIN 46 applies immediately to
variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest endties in which an enterprise
obtains an interest after that date. As the Company has not had, and continues not to have, any ownership in
variable interest entities, the Company's adoption of FIN 46, as required, on February 1, 2003, had no impact on
its accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activides” (SFAS No. 149). SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative
instrumenfs, including certain derivatve instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activides
under SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 149 requires that contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for
similarly and clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component that warrants special reporting
in the statement of cash flows. SFAS No. 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003,
except in certain circumstances, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 149, as required, on July 1, 2003 with no impact on its accompanying consolidated financial statements,

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characreristics
of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 established standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in
its statement of financial position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. The
Company adopted SFAS No. 150, as required, on May 31, 2003 for financial instruments entered into or modified
after such date, with no impact on its accompanying consolidated financial statements. The remaining provisions
of SFAS No. 150 are effective beginning with the Company’s fiscal 2004 first quarter ending October 31, 2003
and must be applied prospectively by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an accounting principle for
financial instruments created before the issuance date of SFAS No. 150 and still existing at July 1, 2003. The
Company adopted these remaining provisions of SFAS No. 150, as required, on August 1, 2003, with no impact
on its accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Segment Reporting :

The Company’s chief operating decision makers consist of members of senior management that work together
to allocate resources to, and assess the performance of, the Company’s business. These members of senior
management currently manage the Company’s business, assess its performance, and allocate its resources as a
single operating segment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-sharve and per-kWh amounts)

3. Market and Regulatory Risks

California Deregulated Ilectric Power Markets

Due in part to historically extreme highs in electrical prices, on September 20, 2001, the California Public Utilities
Commission (CPUC) issued a ruling suspending Direct Access (DA) pursuant to legislation by the California state
legislature. The suspension of DA means that this ruling permits the Company to keep its current customer base
and continue to solicit business from other DA customers served by other providers, but prohibits the Company
from signing up new non-direct access customers for an undetermined period of time. The Company is actively
seeking relief from this ruling.

Under a settlement agreement with the CPUC, Southern California Edison (SCE) was authorized to recoup
$3,600,000 in debt incurred during the energy crisis of 2000-2001 from all customers. This debt was to be
collected under the Procurement Related Obligations Account (PROACT) from bundled (non-DA) customers
and under the Historical Procurement Charge (HPC) from DA customers.

-In July 2002, the CPUC issued an interim order implementing the HPC sought by SCE to collect $391,000 in

HPC charges from all DA customers by reducing their Procured Energy Credit (PE Credit) by $0.027 per kWh
beginning July 27, 2002. The lowered PE Credit continued until an exit fee for DA customers was approved by
the CPUC. Effective January 1, 2003, it was reduced to $0.01 per kWh. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2003,
the Company estimates that HPC charges have impacted the Company’s sales and pretax earnings by a range of
$4,800 to $6,000. The Company is unable to precisely determine the actual HPC charges applied to its customers
by SCE because there are different charges by customer type, and this charge is only on the
electricity usage above the monthly baseline usage allocation. '

On September 5, 2003, the CPUC issued a decision granting SCE’s request to recover additional
shortfall and authorizing the HPC balance to be revised to $473,000; however, the $0.01 per kWh monthly charge
remained in place. As of August 1, 2003, SCE revised its billing methodology to a “bottoms-up” design
effectively doing away with the PE Credit and the net effect of the HPC on the Company’s rates. While the HPC
no longer impacts the Company’s rate calculations going forward, a recent SCE rate reduction includes the impact
of the HPC. This rate reduction will impact sales and pretax profit in the SCE district. The rate reducdon will be
in place in 2004 and will approximate the effect of the HPC dollar impact of 2003.

Recently, SCE acknowledged that the PROACT debt was paid in full by bundled customers at the end of July 2003.
As a result, on August 1, 2003, all SCE rates were lowered. As a direct result, to retain the Company’s customers in
the SCE udility district, the Company lowered its customer rates proportionately. The Company’s estimates of the
annual financial impact of this rate reduction is a decline in sales and pretax profit during fiscal 2004, in the range
of $3,000 to $3,500. This reduction is separate from, but in addidon to, the HPC reduction seen in 2003.

These changes on the Company’s customers in the SCE district will continue to cause a significant impact on the
Company’s revenue and cash flow; however, the Company does not expect that it will preclude the Company from
participating in the California market.

Pennsylvania Operations

In accordance with its standard customer contract in Pennsylvania, the Company may only charge
certain maximum rates for its sales of electric power which, at times, could be less than the Company’s costs of
acquiring, distributing and scheduling such electric power. Energy capacity charges for servicing electric power in
the Pennsylvania market varies significantly from month to month and can affect gross profit margins.




NOTES TO CONSOLIRDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

California Green Power Credits

The State of California enacted a Public Purpose Program (“Program”) to provide incentives to suppliers
of renewable power (produced with at least 50% renewable energy resources), to reduce the cost of such power
to certain consumers by $0.01 per kWh ($0.015 per kWh prior to January 1, 2002). The Company received
regular green power credit payments totaling $2,051 during fiscal 2002, which were included in the Company’s
net revenue during that period. The benefit of these anticipated credits was reflected in the form of discounted
electricity rates charged to the Company’s customers. This phase of the Program expired for service periods
ending December 31, 2001. The Company continued to sell electricity to these customers at discounted rates.
The Program was then subsequently extended for-service periods from January 1, 2002 through March 30, 2003.
The credits of approximately $5,600 received by the Company for this period is reflected in the three-month
period ended July 31, 2003, when it became apparent that the funds would be received. Recognition was
previously deferred because of the uncertainty of receipt caused by both the State budget turmoil in California,
and the indecisive progress this Program made to reach final enactment and settlement as follows: in September
2002, a State law was passed that required the Energy Commission to report to the Governor on whether the
Program should be extended. The submitted report was approved on April 2, 2003, and only “recommended”
extending the Program through service periods ending on March 31, 2003. The recommendations were eventually
accepted, and payment was received in October 2003, and as a result the antcipated payment was shown as a
receivable at July 31, 2003.

4. Interest Income, net

Interest income, net, is comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2001 2002 2003
Interest income - ' $ 2319 $ 1,309 $ 733
Interest expense ‘ “(726) (370} {18}

Interest income, net : $ 1,593 $ 939 $ 715

S. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consist of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 2001 2002 2003
Current income toxes:

Federal $ 24,953 $ (1,768) $ 2,900
State 6,178 583 829
Total : $ 31,13 $(1,185) $ 3,729
Deferred income texes:

Federal $ (7,728) $ 4610 $ 1,155
State (1,551) 700 229
Total . (9,279} 5,310 1,384
Provision for income taxes $ 21,852 $ 4,125 $ 513

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rates to the Company’s effective income tax rates follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 : i 2001 2002 2003
Federal statutory income tax rate ) 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Reversal of federal valuation allowance ' {(13.1) - (1.7}
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 36 9.0 6.4
Expiration of stock options - - 83
Other 1.1 04 05

" Effective income tax rate l . 26.6% A44.4% 48.5%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh amounts)

Deferred income taxes were as follows:

Fuly 31 2002 2003
Deferred income tax asseis:
Stock options $ 2429 $ 521
Reserves and accruals 1,695 23N
Net aperating loss carryforwards 998 843
Allowance for doubtful accounts 410 ‘ 620
Investment in Summit - 158
Total deferred income tax assets 5,532 4,513
Less valuation allowance (998) (843)
Total deferred income tax assets, net 4,534 3,670

Deferred tax linkbilities:

Depréciation and amortization . (311) (867)
State income taxes (254) (218)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (565) (1,085)
Net deferred income tax asset $ 3969 $ 2,585

During fiscal 2001, the valuation allowance increased by $362 as a result of an increase in the federal statutory
income tax rate being applied to the Company’s temporary differences and decreased by $13,595 for the release
of a portion of the valuation allowance due to the Company’s profitable operations for the year. During fiscal 2002,
the valuation allowance decreased by $23 which reflected the uncertainty of the deferred tax asset related to the
net operating loss carryforward, the use of which became limited as described below. During 2003, the valuation
allowance decreased by $155 and reflected the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards for

federal income tax purposes.

At July 31, 2003, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,818 and $2,072 for
federal and state income tax purposes, respectively, that begin to expire in years 2018 and 2008, respectively. The
timing of the utlization of federal net operating loss carryforwards is subject to an annual limitation due
to the “change of ownership” provision of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. As a result of this annual limitation,
a portion of these carryforwards may expire before ultimately becoming available to reduce future income
tax liabilides.

On September 11, 2002, the Governor of California signed into law new tax legislation that suspended the use
of net operating loss carryforwards into tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2002 and 2003. Should the
Company have taxable income for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2004, it may not look to California net
operating losses generated in prior fiscal years to offset taxable income. This suspension will not apply to tax years
beginning on or after 2004,




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh amounts)

6. Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per common share have been computed as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Fuly 31 _ 2001 2002 2003
Numerator: ‘
Net income | ’ $ 60529 8 5164 § 542
Less: Preferred stock dividends (81) - {70) (97)
Income applicable to common stock ~ Basic 60,448 5,094 5,325
Income impact from assumed conversion of preferred stock 81 70 97
Net income - Dituted : $ 60,529 $ 5164 $§ 5422
Denominator: o '
Weighted-average outstanding common shares - Basic ' 29,385 27,482 27,424
Incremental common shares from assumed conversions:
Stock options ' 7 3,843 3,258 1,499
Series A convertible preferred stock 924 796 609
Other convertible preferred stock(a) ' - - 704
Adjusted weighted-average common shares — Diluted 34,152 31,536 30,236

(a) Reflects 352 shares of Other convertible preferred stock recognized pursuant to court order. See Notes 12 and 14.

For fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, 243, 6,943, and 6,860 common shares attributable to outstanding stock options
and warrants were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of their inclusion
would be anti-dilutive. ' :

7. Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net, is comprised of the following:

Fuly 31 2002 2003
Billed $ 15365 § 22244
Unbilled 513 12,998
Green power credits - 5,600

23878 40842
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (2,538) (2,981)
Accounts receivable, net ‘ $ 21380 § 37861

The following schedules set forth the activity in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts for the
reported periods:

Fiscal Year Ended fuly 31 : 2001 2002 2003
Balance, beginning of year ' ‘ $ 1,459 $ 3,946 $ 2538
Provisions charged to operations ) 4,666 2,313 1,709
Write-offs {2,179) (3,721) {1,266}

Balance, end of year ) $ 3,946 $ 2538 & 2981

The Company’s fiscal 2001 provision for doubtful accounts includes $1,604 to fully reserve for withheld customer
remittances due from Pacific Gas and Eleetric (PG&E) which filed for bankruptey protection in April 2001,
The Company views PG&E’ filing for bankruptcy protection as the result of an unforeseeable convergence of a
number of unusual events that gave rise to the then California energy crisis. The Company has filed 2 Proof of
Claim with the bankruptcy court but any recovery remains uncertain.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh amounts)

8. Restvicted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Fuly 31 2002 2003

Short-term investments pledged as collateral for letters of credit in connection
with agreements for the purchase of electric power $ 7775 $ 11,887

Short-term invesiments pledged as collateral for an appeals bond

. in connection with a litigation award 4,107

Cash and cash equivalents of Summit 8,411 4979
$ 14,186 $ 20,773

The Company had $15,471 in outstanding letters of credit at July 31, 2003.

9. Investments

In July 2001, the Company formed Summit as a vehicle through which it could invest in entities
that develop and market products that conserve or manage electricity. The Company’s initial $15,000 capital
contribution in Summit, which consttutes its entire invesanent to date, entitled it to a 100% preferred membership
interest and a 60% common membership interest. The Company has the right to invest additional amounts under
certain conditions. Addidonally, should Summit propose to issue additional ownership interests or to sell any
investment held by it, the Company has first rights of refusal at equivalent terms.

All investments made by Summit must be approved by its investment committee, which is comprised of three
individuals appointed by the Company. Summit’s investment committee has appointed Northwest Power
Management (NPM) as its investment manager, for which it receives a $700 annual fee.

Any investment returns realized by Summit are allocated initially to the repayment of all capital
contributions by the Company, and a 10% annual preferred return thereon, with any remaining profits allocated
60% to the Company and 40% to NPM. Any cumulative net losses incurred by Summit are allocated 100%
to the Company as the sole contributor of capital. Summit’s Limited Liability Company (LLC) agreement
sets forth that it will cease to exist as a legal entity in June 2006, although its life may be extended for up to two
additional one year periods if so chosen by NPM. Upon its legal dissoluton, Summit will make distributions in
accordance with the terms of the LLC agreement as stated above.

At July 31, 2003, Summit had investments in three energy-related companies as follows:

Current Current

) Date of Inital Invesument  Ownership

Investee ‘ Investment Basis  Percentage

Envenergy, Inc October 2001 $ 2,030 8.68%

Turbocor, BV January 2002 3,332 8.78%

Power Efficiency Corporation June 2002 - 52.8%
Total investments $ 5362

On May 8, 2003, Summit provided a $1,000 revolving line of credit to PEC. Any advances are secured by all of
PEC’s tangible and intangible assets and accrue interest at a rate of 15% per annum. The line of credit expires on
December 31, 2003 with any outstanding advances and accrued interest becoming due and payable. Prior to
extending this revolving line of credit, Summit’s convertible preferred stock holding in PEC entided it
to cast shareholder votes not to exceed 28% of PEC’ outstanding common shares. Upon providing PEC
with the revolving line of credit, Summit became entitled to cast shareholder votes equivalent to that number
of common shares in PEC into which its convertible preferred shares was convertible. Subsequently, as a result
of periodic issuances of additonal common shares by PEC and an anti-diludon guarantee held by Summit,
the number of common shares that Summit was entitled to convert its convertible preferred stock holding
into and vote increased to as much as 56%. Subsequent PEC stock sales have reduced Summit’s investment to
52.8% at July 31, 2003.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

Summit has consistently accounted for its investment in Envenergy, Inc. under the cost method
of accounting. The Company accounted for its investment in Turbocor, LLC under the equity method of
accounting whereby it recognized its proportionate share of income and losses untl January 31, 2003, when its
ownership percentage was reduced. Summit then accounted for its investment in Turbocor, BV (Turbocor, LLC
was collapsed, and Summit’s equivalent investment in Turbocor, Inc., the operating endty, is now held directy
through Turbocor BV) under the cost method of accounting. Prior to May 8, 2003, Summit accounted for its
investment in PEC using the equity method of accounting, but based on Summit’s recently increased ownership
percentage, after May 8, 2003, Summit is consolidating its investment in PEC. ‘

Condensed balance sheet information for Sumrﬁit at July 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Fuly 31 } 2002 2003
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,411 $ 4,979
Prepaid expenses 350 403
Inventory - 407
Investments ; 7,453 5,362
Property and equipment, net _ ) - 95
Goodwill - 3,007
Other assets - 186
Total assets : ‘ $14,214 $14,439
Linbilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 685
Notes payable - short-term ) . - 43
Total liabilities - 1,086
Minority interest i : 4 - 603
Owners’ equity -~ : . 14,214 12,740

Total liabilities and owners’ equity ‘ $14,214 $14,439

Summit, since its inception in fiscal 2001, has been consolidated into the Company’s financial statements as the
Company exercises, or has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, legal, financial and operatonal
control. The effects of Summit’s results of operations on the Company’s consolidated results of operations were
net losses of $803 and $1,472 for fiscal 2002 and 2003, respectively.

10. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net, is comprised of the following:

Fuly 31 2002 2003

Information technology equipment and systems . $ 5,606 $ 5924
Office furniture and equipment . 1,325 1,667
Leasehold improvements 125 144°
7,056 1,735
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization i (3,144) (4,751)

Property and equipment, net , $ 3912 $ 2,984
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11. Other Curvent Ligbilities

Other current liabilites are comprised of the following:

Fuly 31 ' 2002 2003
Litigation damages payable $ ~ $ 2738
Energy taxes payable ‘ ‘ 438 1,330
Accrued energy payable 795 618
Accrued payroll and benefits 589 786
Accrued bonuses 410 495
Accrued legal expenses 1,572 318
Notes payable - 431
Other 504 4N
Total accrued liabilities $ 4,308 $ 1127

12. Shareholders’ Equity

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

Each share of the Company’s outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock (i) has the same votng rights as
one share of the Company’s common stock into which it is convertble at the shareholder’s discretion, (ii) accrues
cumulative dividends at an annual rate of 10% which are payable at the Company’s discretion, and (iii)
has a preferential liquidation right in the amount of $1 per share plus any declared but unpaid dividends.
On December 20, 2002, the Company paid a cash dividend of $0.15 per share to holders of record as of
December 16, 2002. Cumulative unpaid dividends were $91 as of July 31, 2003.

During fiscal 2001, the Company offered all Series A preferred shareholders the option to rescind
their purchase at the initial offering price of $§1 per share. Pursuant to this offer, the Company subsequently
repurchased 164 preferred shares in fiscal 2001 and 2002.

Other Convertibie Preferred Stock

Pursuant to a September 2003 court ruling (see Note 14), the Company has reflected shares of Other convertible
preferred stock in the accompanying financial statements. If the court’s ruling were to stand, each share of this
Other convertible preferred stock would (i) have the same voting rights as two shares of the Company’s common
stock into which it is convertible at the shareholder’s discretion, (ii) accrue cumulative dividends at an annual rate
of 12% to 14%, and (iii) have a preferential liquidation right to the Company’s common stock. No dividends have
been declared on these shares as of July 31, 2003. Cumulative unpaid dividends were $42 at July 31, 2003.

Common Stoclk
All sales of the Company’s common stock to date have been through private placements.

At July 31, 2003, the Company has reserved the following shares of its common stock:

Reserved for potential conversion of outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock 609
Reserved for potential conversion of deemed outstanding Other convertible preferred stock 704
Reserved for potential exercise of outstanding stock options 7,489
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh antounts)

Adjustraent of Number of Qutstanding Shares of Series A Preferrad and Common S$Stock

In December 2002, the Company determined that 166 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock and
166 shares of common stock that had previously been treated as outstanding had not been validly issued.
As a result, these shares were removed from the records of the Company and the Company has determined that
such shares shall no longer be treated as issued and outstanding for any purpose. Accordingly, the Company has
corrected its current years® financial statements to reflect the cancellation of these shares. The correction did not
impact the Company’s reported earnings per common share amounts.

Sharcholder Rights Plan

In January 2002, the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan that is triggered whenever an Acquiring Person
accumulates 15% or more of the Company’s stock or if an Adverse Person acquires 10% or more of the Company’s
stock and intends to implement measures which the Board of Directors believes to be adverse to the Company’s
interests. An Acquiring Person is a person or group, together with the person’s or group’s affiliates, that has
acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of
the Company’s common stock. An Adverse Person is a person, alone or with affiliates, that has become the
beneficial owner of more than 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock and (i) such
beneficial ownership is intended to cause the Company to repurchase the common stock owned by such person
or pressure the Company to take action or enter into transactions intended to provide such person with
short-term financial gain under circumstances where the Company’s Board of Directors determine that the
Company’s best long-term interests would not be served by taking such action or entering into such transactions
or (ii) such beneficial ownership is causing or reasonably likely to cause a materially adverse impact on
the Company’s business or prospects, provided, however, that the Company’s Board of Directors does not have
the right to declare a person to be an Adverse Person if such person has reported or is required to réport
its ownership of the Company’s common stock on Schedule 13G under Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, or on Schedule 13D ijf that schedule does not state any intention to, or reserve the right to, control
or influence the Company or engage in certain other actions, so long as such person neither reports nor is required
to report such ownership. Once the rights vest, shareholders other than the Acquiring Person or Adverse person will
be able to purchase at a predetermined price two shares of common stock for the price of one share of common stock.

13. Stock Options and Warrants

All unexercised stock options granted prior to December 1999 expired in December 2002. Stock options granted
after December 1999 will expire in December 2004 through 2010. As of July 31, 2003, 7,489 stock options
remained unexercised and outstanding.

The Company’s 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (“Plan”), which was approved by the Company’ shareholders, provides
for the granting of up to an aggregate of 7,000 common shares. In addition, the Company’s Board of Directors
has from time to time made individual grants of warrants or options outside the Plan. At July 31, 2003, the
Company had 2,927 and 4,562 stock options unexercised and outstanding that were granted under and
outside the Plan, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
(in thousands, except per-shave and per-kWh amounts)

Stock option activity is set forth below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Number of Exercise Price Average Fair Value of
Optz'om Outstmzdz’ng Shares Per Share Exercise Price  Common Stock
Balance at July 31, 2000 9,250 .$ 001 - 8375 $ 147 $ -
Options grented:
Employee performance-based(1) 300 - 250 2.50 $ 275
Gther employeest2) 2,500 - 275 2.75 $ 275
Outside directors(2) 150 - 275 275 $ 275
Options exercised (67) 000 - 1.00 0.07
Options cancelled (1,850) 001 - 375 1.72
Balance at July 31, 2001 10,283 001 - 375 1.79
Options granted:
Other employees(1) 5 1.00 - 375 222 $ 313
Employee performance-based(2) 300 2.50 2.50 $ 238
Options exercised C(52) 001 — 1.00 0.50 :
Options cancelled (46) 005 - 375 1.04
Balance at July 31, 2002 10,480 001 - 375 1.82
Optiens granted:
Employee performance-based 300 250 2.50 $ 250
Other employees(2) 325 186 - 3.05 1.93 $ 188
Options exercised (482) 0.01 - 1.00 0.03
Options cancelled {403) 250 - 275 250
Options expired (2,781) 001 - 1.00 0.22
Balance at July 31, 2003 7,489 $ 050 - 8375 $§ 255

(1) Options with exercise prices [ess than the fair value of the Company’s common stock at respective dates of grant.
(2) Options with exercise prices equal to the fair value of the Company’s common stock at respective dates of grant.

The weighted average characteristics of stock options outstanding as of July 31, 2003 were as follows:

Average
Number Remaining Weighted-
of Shares Contractuai Life Shares Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (Years) Exercisable  Exercise Price
$001 - $050 100 0.4 100 $ 050
$1.00 - $1.86 429 71 279 1.48
$250 - 8315 . 6,950 47 4,865 2.66

Total 7,489 438 5,244 § 255




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS econtinued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

Stock Options Granted to the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive OFficer and
Related Stock-Based Compensation .

As part of an employment agreement with a term expiring January 31, 2005, the Company has granted 4,200 stock
options to the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer which have an exercise price of $2.50 per share
and’ expire on January 1, 2010. As of January 1, 2000, 300 of the options were vested and 100 options vest
annually on January 1 of each vear from 2001 through 2004, for a total of 700. The remaining 3,500 options are
performance-based and vest upon the occurrence of certain events as detailed below.

. Performance criteria which were met as of July 31, 2003, the number of related stock options vested and those not
earned, and stock-based compensation recognized during the years ended July 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows
(no stock-based compensation was recognized in the year ended July 31, 2003, as the exercise price of the stock
options was above the current fair market value of the Company’s common stock):

Number of Options Stock-based Compensation
Earnedand  Not Farned and  Recognized in Recognized in
Vested Unvested Fiscal 2001 Fiscal 2002

Completion of the audit of the Company's

July 31, 2000 consolidated financial statements 500 - $ 125 $ -
Settlement of the California Department of

Corporations investigation . ) 250 - 62 -
Settlement of the California Public Utilities .

Commission investigation 500 - 125 -
Combletion of liquidity event, '

as defined in related agreement - 750 413 (413)
Completion of a successful initial public offering - 300 - 165 (185)
Meeting the Company’s business plans for 2000 100 200 25 -
Exceeding the Company’s business plans .

by 10% or more for 2001 300 - 165 (185)
Exceeding the Company's business plans :

by 10% or more for 2002 300 - - -
Exceeding the Company’s business plans

by 10% or more for 2003 - 300 - -

1,950 1,550 $ 1,080 $ (743)

If during the term of the employment agreement, the Company makes a public offering of its shares or if the
Company supports any other form of liquidity event, then all stock options related to this employment agreement,
whether earned or not; shall be considered vested concurrent to such event.

The employment agreement also provides that in the event the Company terminates the agreement early or a
change in control of the Company occurs, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer has the right to
require the Company to repurchase all of his capital stock and stock options, then earned or to be earned, at a
repurchase price equal to two times the then value of the Company’s common stock..

Stock Purchase Warrants »

In June 2000, the Company granted a lender in connection with a line of credit agreement, which
subsequently expired in June 2002, stock purchase warrants enabling the lender to purchase 100 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per share. These warrants, which had a nominal value as

of the grant date, expired unexercised in June 2003,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
(in thousands, except per—sbare and per-kWh amounts)

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments
Purchase Commitments

The Company has entered into a series of electricity supply contracts to purchase elecmaty energy
covering approximately 81% of the current load servicing requirements.

The following is a summary of the Company’s commitments to purchase electric power by state as of July 31, 2003:

Fiscal Year Ending Fuly 51 2004 2005 2006 Total
California $ 40,255 $ 12,963 3 - $ 53218
Pennsylvania 49,767 32,365 18,729 100,861
Total $ 90,022 $ 45328 $ 18729 $ 154,079

For the Michigan market, the Company has entered into several forward energy supply contracts with a major
energy generator to purchase the full requiremerits service product to service the Company’s customer load. These
full requirement service contracts include energy and all scheduling costs. These contracts require the
generator to sell the Company power, however, the Company is not required to take delivery.

Since the price at which the Company can purchase electric power is fixed during the terms of the contracts, if
the price at which the Company can resell this electric power falls below the contract purchase price plus
distribudon and scheduling costs, the Company would incur operating losses during such periods.

Operating Leases

The Company leases its corporate facilities as well as certain equipment under operating leases. Certain of these
operating leases are noncancellable and contain rent escalation clauses relating to any increases to real property
taxes and maintenance costs. The Company incurred aggregate rent expense under operating leases of $697, $704
and $742 in fiscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating lease agreements in existence at July 31, 2003

are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Fuly 31

2004 $ 693
2005 158
2006 n
Total $ 862

Employment Agreements
The Compary has five executive employment agreements in existence at July 31, 2003 that provide for future
aggregate base salaries as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Fuly 31

2004 $ 149
2005 917
Total $ 2,408

Under these agreements, the Company may also be required to pay bonuses in the event of a change in control
and/or upon early termination of employment.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
(in thousands, except per-share and per-kWh amounts)

Contingencies

Litigation with C@mpamy s Founder

The Company’s corporate records state 8,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to
its founder on August 15, 1997 in exchange for $140 in the form of cash payments totaling $90 and personal
property having a fair value of $50; however, the Company was unable to verify that all of this consideration was
actually paid to the Company. Accordingly, on February 23, 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors instructed
the Company’s management to reflect on the corporate stock records that only a portion of the shares issued the
founder be recognized as validly issued.

Previously, at the time the Company entered into the severance agreement with the founder, the founder and the
Company entered into an Accommodaton Agreement pursuant to which 1,200 of the founders’ common shares
were placed into an escrow account for a period of three years from which the Company could use shares to settle
claims of former employees of the Company. At the end of the three-year period, any shares remaining in the
escrow account were to be released to the founder.

Subsequent to the actions described above, claims and counterclaims were filed by the Company and the founder.
In August 2001, a settlement was reached with the founder and approved by the court having jurisdiction over the
case. The material terms of the settlement provided that the Company pay the founder $4,790 in damages and an
additional $2,400 to purchase 1,175 shares of the Company’s common stock claimed to be held by the founder.
The settlement agreement also provided that the remaining 4,720 shares of the Company’s common stock claimed
to be held by the founder were void. The Founder also agreed to release his claims to the shares of the Company’s
common stock held by the Company pursuant to the Accommodation Agreement and to the Company’s
obligation to him under a severance agreement. The founder also agreed that he would have no future ownership
in the Company. The loss on the settlement of $4,790, which is net of the previously accrued severance payable
to the founder of $928, was recorded as of July 31, 2001 and is included in general and administrative expenses
for the year then ended.

Litigation

In August 2001, Joseph P. Saline, one of the Company’s directors, filed a suit secking access to all of
the Company’s documents and records. The Company filed a cross-petition alleging that Mr. Saline unlawfully
disseminated confidential information belonging to the Company, breached his confidentiality agreement with
the Company, breachied his fiduciary duty to the Company, and illegally tape-recorded meetings and seeking,
among other things, to limit Mr. Saline’s ability to distribute the corporate documents he was seeking. The trial
court issued an order granting Mr. Saline access to certain documents, but prohibited Mr. Saline from disclosing
or discussing the documents he requested with anyone other than his attorney and other members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company provided Mr. Saline with copies of certain corporate documents
under the protection of the court order. Mr. Saline filed an appeal, seeking to reverse the restrictions on his right
to disclose or discuss the documents with third parties and to reverse the trial court’s limits on his inspection
rights. On July 30, 2002, the California Court of Appeals reversed the order of the Superior Court that limited
Mr. Saline’s ability to disseminate the documents. The Court of Appeals further granted Mr. Saline with access to
all of the Company’s documents and records. The Court of Appeals also ordered that Mr. Saline shall recover
the costs of his appeal from the Company. In March 2003, the court denied the Company’s motion for summary
judgment with respect to the Company’s counter claims. In September 2003, the Company amended its
cross-petition to add claims alleging that Mr. Saline committed libel and committed unfair business practices.
These claims are based upon certain alleged actions by Mr. Saline in connection with certain purchases of the
Company’s securities and statements Mr. Saline made regarding the proxy contest with respect to the Companvs

2001 annual meeting of shareholders. This case is currently pending.
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In October 2001, Mr. Saline filed a civil claim against the Company élleging that the Company breached its
contract to sell Mr. Saline preferred shares, is estopped to deny the rights and privileges of his preferred stock,
unlawfully denied him his voting rights and committed unfair business practices. In his complaint, Mr. Saline
alleged that he is the holder of 352 shares of preferred stock, with two-for-one conversion and voting rights that
differ from the rights set forth in the Certificate of Determination for the Company’s Series A preferred stock filed
with the California Secretary of State. Mr. Saline also has made claims for damages, including punitve
damages. The Company filed an answer disputing Mr. Saline’s claims and filed a cross-complaint for declaratory
relief. A trial was held in June 2003. On September 24, 2003, the court issued an order prohibiting the Company
from refusing to recognize that Mr. Saline owns 352 shares of preferred stock, convertible into common stock and
entitled to vote on a two-for-one basis. As a result, all such shares have been reflected in these financial statements
as “Other convertible preferred stock.” The Company intends to appeal the court’s ruling. A second phase of the .
trial to consider Mr. Saline’s claims for damages is pending.

In February 2001, several former employees filed a lawsuit against the Company. The complaint was filed by
David James and twelve other former employees who worked with David James in raising invesunent
capital. The plaintiffs’ complaint had alleged claims for unfair business practices, breach of contract, and fraud and
intentional deceit. The plaintiffs allege, in summary, that they were formerly employed by the Company and are
owed commissions and stock optons from the Company under their alleged employment agreements and
based on alleged representations that were made to them by former Officers of Company in the course of their
employment. The Company filed a cross-complaint asserting claims for breach of contract; unfair business
practices; misappropriadon of trade secrets; intentional interference with prospective economic advantage;
negligent interference with prospective economic advantage; conversion; slander; prohibitory injunctive relief;
mandatory injunctive relief; and declaratory relief which the Company disinissed without prejudice. In addition,
the Company filed a first amended cross-complaint that asserted additional cross-claims against plaintiff David
James for rescission and restitudon, fraud, money had and received, unjust enrichment and declaratory relief.
The plaintiffs sought, among other relief, damages in the amount of up to $10,000, plus costs and attorney fees.
A jury trial was held in this matter beginning in October 2002. On December 10, 2002, the jury returned a verdict
finding for the plaintiffs in the amount of $2,700 (accrued as of July 31, 2003) of compensatory damages. During
trial, the Company voluntarily dismissed the Company’s. cross-complaint without prejudice. In January 2003, the
Company filed post-trial motions in the lawsuit filed against the Company by several former employees for a new
trial and for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict, seeking to have the $2,700 verdict for the plaintiffs set aside.
In March 2003, the court denied the Company’s post-trial motions for a new trial and for a judgment
notwithstanding the verdict in the lawsuit filed against the Company by several former employees. The Company
filed a notce of appeal in March 2003, seeking reversal of the judgment in favor of the plaintiffs. On June 26,
2003, the court ruled that the Company was the prevailing party on the contract claims brought by the plaindiffs
and that the Company was entitled to recover attorney’s fees and costs from the plaintiffs totaling approximately
$1,100. The Company’s appeal is currently pending. The plaintiffs have also appealed the Court’s ruling awarding
the Company attorney’s fees. In order to stay the enforcement of the judgment pending appeal, the Company
posted an appellate bond of approximately $4,100. This bond was outstanding at July 31, 2003. In September
2003, a court ruling permitted the reduction of the bond to $2,600.

The Company currently is, and from time to time may become, involved in other lidgation concerning claims
arising out of the Company’s operations in the normal course of business. While the Company cannot
predict the ultimate outcome of its pending matters or how they will affect the Company’s results of operations
or financial position, the Company’s management currently does not expect any of the legal proceedings to which
the Company is currently a party, including the legal proceedings described above, individually or in the
aggregate, to have a materially adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position beyond the accruals
provided as of July 31, 2003.
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15. Related Party Transactions

On November 9, 2001, the Company purchased certain rights to hire employees and contractors of their primary
information technology vendor, Syméas. Additionally, as part of the same agreement, Symeas transferred interest
in and to all of the software that Symcas has developed for us. The purchase agreement contained a covenant
not to compete prohibitng the principals of Symcas from competing with the Company’s software product or
directly or indirectly assisting others to develop a software product similar to the Company’s software product for
a period of two vyears. Symcas previously performed substantially all of the Company’s software
development information technology support and maintenance, and procurement of hardware and software.

On December 15, 2001, after the close of the agreement with Symecas, thé Company hired Linda Guckert, an
employee and officer of Symcas, to be the Company’s Vice President of Information Technology. Ms. Guckert and
her husband continue to own a significant interest in Symcas. The Company continues to utilize Symecas on a
limited basis for its information technology maintenance. The Company paid Symcas §2,091 and $577 in ﬁscal
2002 and 2003, respectively.

16. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended A October 31 January 31  April 30 July 31
(In thousands, except per-share information)

Year ended Fuly 31, 2002:

Netrevenue $ 28781 0§ 827 $ 28065 § 35326
Gross profit(1) ] $ 3254 $ 7,694 $ 7804 $ 11,676
Netincome {loss) : ) § (667) $ 1,103 § 1382 $ 3346

Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic ' 0.02)
Diluted v ' {0.02)

Year ended Fuly 31, 2003:

Net revenue _ ' 33,682 , , 62,244
Gross profit{1) 7,478 190 , 14,695
Net income (loss) . (528) $ - , 4,265

Net income (loss) per comwmion share:

Basic ’ § (002 $§ 002 $§ 004 § 015
Dituted §  {0.02) $§ 002 § 004 § 015

(1) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company reclassified costs associated with the Pennsylvania gross receipts taxes
which the Company deemed appropriate to reclassify to direct energy costs from general and administrative expenses. For the
four quarters of fiscal 2002, the reclassifications were $105, $256, $328 and $454, respecmvely and in the first three quarters of
fiscal 2003, the reclassifications were $726, $628 and $530, respecuvely
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Form 10-X Repors
Upon request, Commonwealth Energy Corporation will provide a copy of the 2003 Form 10-K Annual Report
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Forwarc-Looking Statements

This annual report, including the Letter to Shareholders, contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws. Forward-looking statements are based upon managements belief and
assumptions made by, and information currently available to, management. Our actual results could differ
materially from the results anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of numerous factors,
including the risks and uncertainties set forth under the capton, “Factors That May Affect Future Results” in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation which is included as part
of this annual report, and factors set forth in other periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission.

Additionzl information and Where To Find It

In connection with the proposed reorganizadon of Commonwealth discussed in the Letter to Shareholders and
in the Corporate Qutlook Section of this annual report, the new holding company plans to file a registration
statement on Form S-4 in connection with the proposed transaction and Commonwealth and the new holding
company expect to mail a joint proxy statement/prospectus to the shareholders of Commonwealth containing
information about the proposed transaction. Investors and security holders are advised to read the joint proxy
statement/prospectus regarding the potental transaction referred to above when it becomes available, because
they will contain important information. The registration statement will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission by the new holding company and the joint proxy statement/prospectus will be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission by both companies. Investors and security holders may obtain a free
copy of the registration statement and the joint proxy statement/prospectus (when available) at the Securities and
Exchange Commission's web site at www.sec.gov. The joint proxy statement/prospectus may also be obtained free
of charge from Commonwealth at 1-800-ELECTRIC or rreeves@electric.com. Commonwealth and its directors
and executive officers may be deemed to be participants in the solicitation of proxies or consents from
shareholders in connection with the proposed transaction. Information about the directors and executive officers
of Commonwealth and their ownership of Commonwealth stock and information about other persons who may
also be deemed to be participants in Commonwealth’s solicitation will be included in the proxy
statement/prospectus (when available). In addition to the proxy statement/prospectus, Commonwealth files
annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange

Commission. These filings are also available at www.sec.gov.

This annual report shall not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities, and
shall not constitute an offer, solicitation or sale in any state or jurisdiction in which such an offer, solicitation or
sale would be unlawful.

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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